
.. 

?' 

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
17301133RD AVENUE NE 

WOODINVILLE, WASHINGTON 98072 

.• 



CITY OF WOODINVILLE 
TREE BOARD AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING WEDNESDAY, MARCH 25, 2015 5:30PM 

• Thomas L Quigley • Michael Munniks • Ron Smith • Steve Y abroff • Stephanie Young 

5:30 CALL TO ORDER 

5:31 ROLL CALL 

5:32 APPROVE AGENDA IN CONTENT & ORDER 

5:33 PUBLIC COMMENTS 

BUSINESS AND DISCUSSION ITEMS 

5:38 1. Approval of Draft Minutes- February 25, 2015 

5:40 2. Study Session - Review of Tree Code 

6:00 3. Study Session - Review Landscaping Requirements 

6:10 4. Proposed 2015 Arbor Day Events 

6:25 PUBLIC COMMENTS 

6:30 ADJOURNMENT 

(Note: The agenda may be rearranged or changed at the beginning of the meeting, with a consensus of Tree Board 
members present.) 

Issue Date: February 17,2015 
Staff Contact: Jenny Ngo, Sr. Planner 

Faxed to: 
E-mailed to: 
Publish: 
Post: 

News Media 
Tree Board 
Not published 
1) In-House, 2) Post Office & 3) Website 

CITY OF WOODINVILLE, CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
17301 133RD AVE. NE, WOODINVILLE, WA 98072 

NEXT REGULAR MEETING APRIL 22, 2015, 5:30PM 



)> 
C) 
m z 
c 
)> 
--I m 
:s: 



City of Woodinville, Washington 
TREE BOARD REGULAR MEETING MINUTES OF February 25, 2015 

Woodinville City Hall City Council Chambers, 17301 133rd Avenue NE, Woodinville, WA 

CALL TO ORDER The regular meeting for the Woodinville Tree Board was called to order at 
5:34p.m. by Board Member Yabroff. 

ROLLCALL Tree Board Present: Steve Y abroff, Stephanie Young, and Ron Smith 

Absent: Tom Quigley, Michael Munniks 

City Staff Present: Jenny Ngo, Senior Planner 

MAIN MOTION: to excuse Board Members Quigley and Munniks. 
There was a motion to excuse Board Members 
Quigley and Munniks from the meeting. 

Motion by: Board Member Young 
Second by: Board Member Smith 
Action for the Main Motion: PASS ED 3 - 0 
Vote: Ayes: 3. 

Nayes: 0. 
Abstain: 0. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA Motion to approve agenda as presented. 
ORDER AND CONTENT 

PUBLIC COMMENTS None. 

BUSINESS AND 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 

Approval of January 28, 2015 1. Approval of January 28, 2015 Tree Board Meeting Minutes as 
Regular Tree Board Minutes presented. 
as presented 

MAIN MOTION: to approve the regular meeting minutes of 
January 28, 2015, as presented. 

Motion by: Board Member Young 
Second by: Board Member Smith 
Action for the Main Motion: PASSED 3 - 0 

Vote: Ayes: 3. 
Nayes: 0. 
Abstain: 0. 

Tree Board Meeting February 25,2015 DRAFT Page 1 of2 



Discussion and Review of Draft 
Tree Code 

Review City Tree Fund 

2. Discussion & Review of Draft Tree Code 
The Tree Board continued discussion of the draft of the tree code. 

Tree Board Members requested that staff create a separate section for tree 
removals on sites without construction, which is intended to be primarily 
geared towards single-family homeowners wishing to remove several 
trees a year. 

Tree Board Members discussed a potential recommendation to Planning 
Commission to adopt the draft code. Board Members agreed that Chair 
Quigley should have an opportunity to comment and review the code 
before a formal recommendation is made. 

3. Discussion & Review of City Tree Fund 
Tree Board Members discussed the tree fund and potential revenue 
sources and uses. Board Members recommended that an agenda item be 
created for a future meeting for recommended uses of tree fund monies, 
including a recommendation for designating heritage trees and installing 
plaques of historic or community value. 

Discussion ofTree-ster Events for 3. Discussion ofTree-ster Events for 2015 
2015 Tree Board Members discussed different event opportunities for the 2015 

Arbor Day event. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

ADJOURNMENT 

Sandy Guinn 
Sr. Administrative Assistant 

Tree Board Meeting February 25, 2015 

Tree Board Members set the date to April26, 2015 from 1:00 to 4:00PM 
at Wilmot Gateway Park. The Arbor Day Event will be named 
Woodinville Tree Games. 

Members identified several activities for the event, including tree pruning 
workshop, kid's activities, tree matching exercise, and exhibitors/vendors. 
Each Board Member selected an activity to develop. Sr. Planner Ngo 
stated that she was identifying funding sources for the event. Staff plans 
to order seedlings, find handouts, and other giveaways for the event. 

MAIN MOTION: To extend the meeting 15 minutes to finish 
discussion of 2015 Arbor Day events. 

Motion by: Board Member Smith 
Second by: Board Member Young 
Action for the Main Motion: PASS ED 3 - 0 
Vote: Ayes: 3. 

Nayes: 0. 
Abstain: 0. 

None. 

Chair Pro-Tern Yabroff called the meeting adjourned. 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:40 p.m. 

DRAFT Page 1 of2 



)> 
G) 
m z 
c 
)> --1 
m 
3: 
1\.) 



To: 

From: 

By: 

Subject: 

CITY OF WOODINVILLE, WA 

REPORT TO THE TREE BOARD 
17301 133rd Avenue NE, Woodinville, WA 98072 
WWW.CI.WOODINVILLE.WA.US 

Tree Board 

Dave Kuhl, Development Services Directo~ 
Jenny Ngo, AICP, Senior Planner 

Review of Tree Code 

Date: February 25, 2015 

ISSUE: Shall the Tree Board discuss proposed revisions to the Tree Code? 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: To review and provide feedback on the proposed changes. 

POLICY DECISION: The Tree Board provides an advisory role to the City Council on matters of 
trees and urban forestry. 

BACKGROUND: 
During the November, December, and January meetings, Board Members discussed the 
preliminary draft of the tree code, planting requirements, and tree canopy goals. During the 
meetings, Tree Board Members emphasized creating code language that would match the City's 
adopted canopy goals, loosen restrictions for minor tree removal, and create standards to protect 
trees in large developments or subdivisions. 

DISCUSSION: 
This discussion is a continuation of the Tree Board's review of the code held on January 28, 2015. 
Staff has amended the preliminary tree code based on the Tree Board's discussions and 
recommendations (Attachments 1 and 2). Tree thinning and tree removal in subdivisions were 
clarified based on previous comments. In addition, staff has updated the permit flow chart based 
on the revised code (Attachment 3). 

Staff believes that the draft of the tree code may be ready to take forward to a Planning 
Commission study session. The Tree Board should provide staff with direction on next steps. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
DISCUSS AND MAKE RECOMMENDATIONS 

Attachment 1: March 2015 Draft Tree Code without mark-ups 
Attachment 2: March 2015 Draft Tree Code with mark-ups 
Attachment 3: Updated Permit Flow Chart (to be provided under separate cover) 



Chapter 21.15 
DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS- TREE PROTECTION 

Sections: 
21.15.010 Purpose and intent. 
21.15.020 Applicability. 
21.15. 030 Exemptions. 
21.15. 040 City tree fund established. 
21.15.050 Treepermits. 
21.15.060 Minimum tree density. 
21.15.070 Tree removal on sites with no construction. 
21.15.080 Tree removal for subdivisions or short subdivisions. 
21.15.090 Tree removal in critical areas. 
21.15.100 Supplemental tree planting requirements. 
21.15.110 Alternative compliance. 
21.15.120 Tree protection during construction. 
21.15.130 Tree maintenance. 
21.15.140 Enforcement and penalties. 

21.15.010 Purpose and intent. 

Attachment 1 

Page 1 of 11 

(1) Trees are integral to Woodinville's community character and protect public health, safety, 
and general welfare. Protecting, enhancing, and maintaining healthy trees, groves of trees 
and vegetation are key community values. The City's goal is to achieve an overall tree 
canopy coverage of 40 percent. Healthy trees and vegetation contribute to Woodinville's 
quality of life through reducing soil erosion and land instability; improving air quality, 
providing protection from severe weather conditions; providing habitat and food supply for 
fish and wildlife; enhancing property values and contributing to Woodinville's natural beauty, 
aesthetic character, and livability. 

(2) The purpose of this chapter is to establish processes and standards to provide for the 
retention, protection, preservation, replacement, proper maintenance, and use of significant 
trees and woodlands located in the City of Woodinville. The intent of this chapter is to: 

(a) Maintain and enhance canopy coverage provided by native trees for their benefits; 
(b) Preserve and enhance the City of Woodinville's environmental, economic, and 

community character with mature landscapes; 
(c) Promote site development practices that work to avoid removal destruction, or 

disturbance of significant trees, groves of trees, and the City's natural vegetation; 
(d) Mitigate the consequences of required tree removal in land development through on

and off-site native tree replacement to achieve an overall healthy tree canopy cover 
of 40 percent citywide over time; 

(e) Encourage tree retention efforts by allowing flexibility with respect to certain other 
development requirements; 

(f) Implement the goals and objectives of the City's Comprehensive Plan; 
(g) Implement the goals and objectives of the State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA). 

21.15.020 Applicability. 
(1) Permit required. No person shall conduct tree removal, trimming, or vegetation clearing 

within the city limits except as provided in accordance to this chapter. 
(2) Removal of trees not exempted in WMC 21.15.030 shall require a tree removal permit. Tree 

permits shall be processed as a Type I project permit pursuant to Chapters 17.07 through 
17.09 WMC. Appeals shall be processed consistent with Chapter 17.17 WMC. 



21.15.030 Exemptions. 
The following activities are exempt from the provisions of this chapter: 

Attachment 1 

Page 2 of 11 

(1) Any tree on private, developed property that poses an imminent threat to life or property, 
due to a storm event such as a wind storm or ice storm, may be removed without first 
obtaining a permit. The party removing the tree will contact the City within seven days of 
removal to provide documentation of threat for approval of exemption. 

(2) Trees may be removed by the City or utility provider in situations involving immediate danger 
to life or property, or interruption of services provided by a utility. 

(3) A nursery or tree farm owner may remove trees that are grown for commercial Christmas or 
landscape tree sales. 

(4) Removal of trees with a diameter-at-breast-height of less than two inches. 
(5) Removal of nonsignificant trees with a diameter-at-breast-height of less than six inches 

within a 12-month period, and which have up to a combined diameter-at-breast height of 40 
inches or 10 tree credits. 

(6) Trees within the public right-of-way, and trees removed as part of a City construction project, 
shall be subject to the requirements of Chapter 2.24 WMC. 

21.15.040 City tree fund established. 
(1) Fund established. A City Tree Fund is established for the collection of any funds used for the 

purpose and intent set forth by this chapter. 
(2) Funding sources. The following funding sources may be allocated to the City Tree Fund: 

payments received in lieu supplemental plantings; civil penalties collected pursuant to this 
chapter; agreed-upon restoration payments or settlements in lieu of penalties; sale of trees 
or wood from City property; donations and grants for tree purposes; sale of seedlings by the 
City; and other monies allocated by City Council. 

(3) Funding purposes. The Tree Board shall provide recommendations with each budget to the 
City Council for approval how the fund will be allocated. Prioritization shall be based on the 
Urban Forestry Plan. The City shall use money received pursuant to this section for the 
following purposes: 

(a) Acquiring, maintaining, and preserving wooded areas within the City; 
(b) Planting and maintaining trees within the City; 
(c) Identification and maintenance of heritage trees; 
(d) Establishment of a holding public tree nursery; 
(e) Urban forestry education; or 
(f) Other purposes relating to tree and woodland protection and enhancement as 

determined by the City Council. 

21.15.050 Tree permits. 
(1) When required. Unless otherwise exempted in WMC 21.15.030, an applicant proposing to 

remove trees shall obtain a tree removal permit. 
(2) Submittal materials. The following materials are required to obtain a tree permit. The City 

Tree Official shall have the authority to waive certain application materials if the item is not 
necessary to evaluate a specific proposal for consistency with this chapter. 

(a) Tree permit application, completed and signed by the property owner. 
(b) Site plan prepared by an engineer, surveyor, arborist, or other qualified professional, 

showing the following: 
(i) Location of all existing and proposed structures; construction limits, 

easements, utility lines, and construction protection barriers consistent with 
WMC 21.16.120; 



Attachment 1 

Page 3 of 11 

(ii) Location of all trees above 3 inches at diameter-at-breast height (DBH) within 
50 feet of the construction limits, including size and species; 

(iii) Identification of all trees to be removed and/or relocated; 
(iv) Existing and proposed topography at 5-foot intervals; and 
(v) Location of all critical areas and buffers. 

(c) Replanting plan, showing the following: 
(i) Location of proposed structures and retained trees; 
(ii) Location of proposed replacement trees and/or vegetation, including species, 

size, and spacing; 
(iii) Location and design of other landscape restoration measures; 
(iv) A planting schedule that indicates species, quantity, size, spacing, and tree 

density calculations for replanted trees; and 
(v) Irrigation system, including location and specifications; 

(d) Arborist report or professional recommendation, evaluating the following: 
(i) Inventory of all impacted trees, including size, species, dripline, and critical 

root zone. The inventory must include all trees proposed for removal and any 
trees within 30 feet of the construction limits. Written evaluation of anticipated 
impacts to tree health and viability resulting from construction, including any 
impacts to critical root zones; 

(ii) Information on compliance with coverage requirements, including a 
calculation of tree canopy or replanting schedule; 

(iii) Suggested location and species of supplemental trees, maintenance, and 
planting specifications consistent with WMC 21.15.090; 

(iv) Recommendations on tree protection measures consistent with WMC 
21.16.120 and correspond to the site plan in subsection (b); 

(v) Special instructions for working within the protection area, including but not 
limited to, hand-digging, tunneling, root pruning, minimizing grade changes; 

(vi) Information on any required on-site supervision during construction; 
(vii) Information on maintenance including duration, benchmarks for success, 

cost estimates, and financial guarantees/bonding; and 
(viii) If applicable, assessment and designation of a hazard or nuisance tree. 

21.15.060 Minimum tree density. 
(1) Minimum tree density required. Any tree removal subject to a tree permit shall be required to 

meet minimum tree density of 60 tree credits per acre for residential zones R-1 through R-8. 
All other zones are required to meet the landscape standards pursuant to Chapter 21.16 
WMC. 

(2) Area calculation. For the purposes of calculating required minimum tree density, City right
of-way, and areas to be dedicated as City right-of-way, shall be excluded from the lot area 
used for calculation of tree density. 

(3) Tree density credit calculation. The minimum tree density credits are calculated through a 
tree credit calculation using Table 1. The tree credit calculation is the sum of all retained 
existing trees and any supplemental tree plantings. If a site falls below the minimum tree 
density with existing trees, supplemental planting shall be required pursuant to WMC 
21.15.090. The tree credit value that corresponds with diameter-at-breast-height shall be 
found in the table below: 

WMC 21. 15.060(3) Table 1 -Tree Credit Calculation 



Tree Diameter Inches 

Minimum Maximum 

1.0 3.0 

3.1 6.0 

6.1 12.0 

12.1 24.0 

24.1 36.0 

36.1 50.0 

50.1 and above 

Total 
Credit 

0.5 

1.0 

2.0 

5 

8 

14 

18 

Attachment 1 

Page 4 of 11 

(a) Tree diameter inches shall be determined in diameter-at-breast-height, which is the 
diameter of the tree as measured 4.5 feet off the ground for existing trees and six 
inches off the ground for new plantings. The measured tree diameter shall be its size 
at the time of measurement. 

(b) Existing trees transplanted to an area on the same site may count toward the 
required density if approved by the City Tree Official based on transplant 
specifications provided by a qualified tree professional that will ensure a good 
probability for survival. 

(c) Trees shall be planted in accordance with WMC 21.15.100. On sites where additional 
plantings are not feasible due to spacing or other site constraints, an applicant may 
satisfy the minimum tree density requirement through payment into the City Tree 
Fund pursuant to WMC 21.15.1 00(4)(f). 

21.15.070 Tree removal on sites with no construction. 
(1) Sites with no construction. This section shall apply only to lots located within single-family 

residential zones (R-1 through R-8) where no exterior construction or demolition, grading, 
material storage, or other development activity is proposed, and no development permit 
application is pending or approved for the subject property. 

(2) Performance requirements. Tree removal on single-family residential lots not undergoing 
construction shall meet the following: 

(a) Up to two trees may be removed per year with no replacement planting, provided 
tree removal is located outside of all critical areas and its buffer, NGPA or shared 
ownership tracts. 

(b) Removal of additional trees for the purposes of tree thinning or removal of dead, 
nuisance, hazard trees shall require compliance with the minimum tree density or 
replacement at a rate of three trees per each removed tree. 

21.15.080 Tree removal for subdivisions or short subdivisions. 
(1) Subdivisions and short subdivisions. This section applies to tree removal associated with 

applications for subdivision or short subdivision. 
(2) Performance requirements. Tree removal on lots undergoing subdivision or short subdivision 

shall meet the following: 
(a) The overall site must achieve the minimum tree density pursuant to WMC 21.15.060. 
(b) The site shall retain at least 10 percent of the tree diameter inches of all existing 

healthy, viable significant trees within the property boundaries prior to subdivision or 
construction work. 



Attachment 1 

Page 5 of 11 

(i) This requirement may be reduced for preservation of groves with five or more 
trees consistent with WMC 21.15.11 0. 

(ii) In certain circumstances where tree removal results in less than 10 percent of 
tree diameter inches retained due to site conditions, infrastructure conflicts, or 
other conditions beyond the applicant's control, the City Tree Official may grant an 
exception. The applicant shall pay for the remaining tree diameter inches 
consistent with WMC 21.15.100(f) in additional to any other required payment. 

(c) The applicant shall submit a preservation and maintenance agreement for trees 
located in common areas, including streets, drainage features, parks, or other jointly 
maintained spaces. The document shall be approved and recorded prior to 
occupancy, recording, or final inspection. 

(d) When forest or critical areas are preserved in a separate Native Growth Protection 
Area tract pursuant to WMC 21.24.150, any remaining tree credits within the NGPA 
above the required minimum tree density may be applied towards the entire 
subdivision. The remaining tree credits will be equally divided among the total 
number oflots. Where the tree credits in the NGPA have not been determined, the 
minimum tree density shall apply to each lot within the subdivision. 

(e) A final arborist report shall be submitted at the end of the project verifying the total 
trees removed, retained, and planted, prior to release of the performance bond. 

21.15.090 Tree Removal in Critical Areas 
(1) Tree removal in critical areas. Within critical areas or critical area buffers, only hazard, 

nuisance, or dead trees may be removed or trimmed. If more than two trees are removed, 
the City Tree Official may require submittal of a critical areas alteration pursuant to Chapter 
21.24 WMC. 

(a) Tree removal proposed within a NGPA or an area under common ownership shall 
meet tree density requirements pursuant to WMC 21.15.060. The applicant shall 
obtain signatures from a majority of owners who hold interest in the land or if 
applicable, approval from the homeowner's association. 

(b) The priority action for a tree proposed for removal is to create a "snag" or wildlife 
tree. If creating a snag or wildlife tree is not feasible, the felled tree shall be left in 
place. 

(c) Supplemental trees shall be planted consistent with WMC 21.15.060 and WMC 
21.15.1 00. The requirements may be modified if a qualified tree professional may 
determine to the satisfaction of the City Tree Official that equal or better habitat 
function and values can be achieved with following: 

(i) Native understory plantings are installed; 
(ii) Invasive species removal is conducted; 
(iii) A coverage analysis is submitted stating that the replanted trees will have 

equal or better coverage than the trees removed within five years; and 
(iii) A replanting plan is submitted. 

21.15.100 Supplemental tree planting requirements 
(1) Supplemental trees. Sites and activities requiring supplemental trees shall be planted to 

achieve the required minimum tree density. Tree density credits for supplemental trees shall 
be calculated pursuant to WMC 21.15.060. 

(2) Tree species. The tree species chosen for the supplemental plantings shall either be trees of 
the same mix of species as the removed trees or mix of species listed in the Woodinville 
Plant Species List. Trees should be selected and sited to produce a hardy and drought
resistant landscape area. 



Attachment 1 

Page 6 of 11 

(3) Tree size and spacing. The required minimum size for any supplemental tree is a diameter
breast-height of two-inches or greater. Trees shall be spaced no closer than 15 feet on 
center. 

(4) Tree location. In designing a development and in meeting the required minimum tree 
density, the trees shall be planted in the following order of priority: 

(a) In preserved groves, critical areas or its buffers; 
(b) Adjacent to stormwater facilities, within entrance landscaping, traffic islands, and 

other common areas in residential subdivisions that have enough area to support 
mature trees of the planted species; 

(c) Site perimeter and/or required landscaped setbacks; 
(d) Individual building lots; 
(e) Off-site, when room is not available on-site to ensure long-term health and viability 

for the trees. Trees shall be planted at another location within the same City
designated neighborhood and as approved by the City Tree Official; and 

(f) If trees cannot be planted in accordance with (a) through (e), the applicant may satisfy 
the requirements by paying into the City Tree Fund 200 dollars per tree credit. 

(5) Installation. All required trees shall be installed according to sound horticultural practices in a 
manner designed to encourage quick establishment and healthy plant growth. 

(a) Timing. All trees shall be installed prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy 
or plat recording. The time limit for compliance may be extended to allow installation 
during the next planting season or deferred due to diseased soil or pest infestation. A 
determination shall be made at the discretion of the City Tree Official. Deferred 
installation shall be secured with a performance bond pursuant to Chapters 15.42 or 
20.06 WMC. 

(b) Placement. All supplemental trees shall be installed in the ground and not in 
aboveground containers. 

(c) Grading. Berms shall not exceed a slope of two horizontal feet to one vertical foot 
(2: 1 ). 

(d) Soil specification. Soils in planting areas shall have adequate porosity to allow root 
growth and adequate drainage. Compacted soils shall be loosened to a minimum 
depth of 24 inches or to the depth of the largest plant root ball, whichever is greater. 
Imported topsoils shall be tilled into existing soils to prevent a distinct soil interface 
from forming. 

(e) Fertilization. The organic content of soils in any planting area shall be as necessary 
to provide adequate nutrient and moisture-retention levels for the establishment of 
plantings. Additional fertilization shall be the minimum necessary. 

(f) Irrigation. Irrigation system shall be designed to ensure plant establishment. Irrigation 
shall be designed to conserve water by using best management techniques 
available, including, but not be limited to: drip irrigation; moisture sensors; automatic 
controllers; spacing designed to minimize overspray; and separate zones for different 
planting areas. 

(i) Within right-of-ways and common areas, permanent irrigation with an 
automatic controller shall be installed for tree plantings. Temporary irrigation, 
providing sufficient water to ensure plant survival and establishment, may be 
approved at the discretion of the City Tree Official. 

(ii) For individual residential lots, the applicant may choose permanent irrigation, 
temporary irrigation, or irrigation by hand. 

(iii) Modifications to the irrigation requirement may be approved by the City Tree 
Official for less water-intensive strategies such planting native vegetation that 
does not require supplemental irrigation, low impact development, established 



Attachment 1 

Page 7 of 11 

native plant material, or where natural appearance is acceptable or desirable 
to the City. 

(g) Mulch. Required plantings shall be covered with two inches or more of organic mulch 
to minimize evaporation and runoff. Mulch shall consist of materials such as yard 
waste, sawdust, bark or wood chips, and/or organic compost. All mulches shall be 
kept at least six inches away from the trunks of shrubs and trees. 

(h) Protection. All required trees must be protected from potential damage by adjacent 
uses and development, including parking and storage areas. Protective devices such 
as bollards, wheel stops, trunk guards, and root guards, shall be required as needed 
to protect required trees. 

WMC 21.15.110 Alternative compliance 
(1) Additional density credits. The applicant may earn additional tree density credits through 

alternate measures or procedures that will be equal to or better to the provisions in this 
chapter. If the City Tree Official determines that the proposal meets the purpose and intent 
of the code through alternative compliance, the Official may modify the tree density 
requirements. 

(2) Criteria. The City Tree Official shall review each alternative compliance request based on the 
following criteria: 

(a) The alternative is designed to ensure the long-term health and maturity of the tree; 
(b) The alternative will provide increased environmental benefits including natural 

function and values beyond the standard requirements; 
(c) If applicable, the alternative will enhance or improve critical areas or NGPE areas. 
(d) The alternative will not increase soil erosion, slope instability, nor create drainage 

issues; and 
(e) The alternative provides equivalent or greater compliance with the tree code. 

(3) The following activities or strategies may qualify for alternative compliance: 
(a) Retention of specimen or heritage trees and groves of at least five trees may earn up 

to an additional 10 percent of the tree credits of the subject tree or grove. 
(b) Use of low impact development (LID) designed to the satisfaction of the City Tree 

Official and Public Works Director may earn up to one additional tree credit per 1,000 
square feet of designated LID area. 

(c) Infrastructure installation or modifications such installation of root protection barriers, 
planter strips wider than eight feet, and other similar measures to ensure long-term 
tree health may earn up to 25 percent per affected tree. 

(d) Planting 15 square feet of understory landscaping within the canopy area of each 
supplemental tree may earn up to 15 percent of the tree credits for the subject tree. 
Understory landscaping must include shrubs planted at least 24 inches on center 
and groundcovers planted 18 inches in center. 

21.15.120 Tree protection during construction. 
(1) Tree protection measures shall be installed prior to development activity or initiating tree 

removal on the site. These standards must be adhered to and included on grading and 
building plans as necessary. A pre-construction meeting on-site between the City Tree 
Official and the contractor shall be held prior to site disturbance. 

(2) Tree protection measures shall include, but are not limited to, the following: 
(a) Protective Barrier. A visible temporary protective fencing extending five feet beyond 

the dripline of all retained trees shall be installed prior to site disturbance and 
maintained until removal is authorized by the City Tree Official. Visible signs spaced 
no further than 25 feet along the entirety of the protective tree fence. Said sign must 
be approved by the City Tree Official and shall state at a minimum "Tree Protection 



Attachment1 

Page 8 of 11 

Area, Entrance Prohibited" and provide the City phone number for code enforcement 
to report violations. 

(b) Construction activities. No excavation, storage, parking, construction vehicle 
access, dumping of toxic or polluted materials, or other potentially damaging activity is 
allowed in within the protective barrier. If construction activity within the protective 
barrier is unavoidable, the City Tree Official may allow such activities approved by 
and the following activities under the supervision of a qualified tree professional 
retained by the applicant: 

(i) Equipment may be authorized to operate within the critical root zone, if no 
other alternative is feasible. The areas adjoining the critical root zone of a tree 
shall be covered with mulch to a depth of at least six inches, or with plywood, 
metal or similar material in order to protect roots from damage caused by 
heavy equipment. 

(ii) Utility trenches should be located outside of the critical root zone of trees. If 
utilities must be placed within the critical root zone, a qualified tree 
professional shall review the proposal to ensure the long-term viability of the 
trees. The work shall minimize root damage by excavating a two-foot-deep 
trench, at edge of critical root zone, to cleanly sever the tree roots. 

(iii) Corrective pruning may be performed on protected trees in order to avoid 
damage from machinery or building activity. 

(iv) Site grading within the critical root zone shall be the minimum necessary. The 
applicant's qualified tree professional shall establish the maximum amount of 
earthwork allowable in the critical root zone that will not imperil the survival of 
the tree. Suitability of activities shall be based on construction techniques, 
erosion potential, damage to the critical root zone, stabilization techniques, 
and other similar factors 

(c) Exposed soils. Trees and other vegetation to be retained shall be protected from 
erosion and sedimentation. Clearing activities shall be conducted so as to expose 
the smallest practical area of soil to erosion for the least possible time. To control 
erosion, it is encouraged that shrubs, groundcovers, and stumps be maintained on 
the individual lots, where feasible. 

(d) Directional Felling. Directional felling of trees shall be used to avoid damage to trees 
designated for retention. Any trees designated for preservation, per the approved 
tree plan, that are significantly damaged or destroyed during felling of trees approved 
for removal shall be replaced perWMC 21.15.060. 

(e) Additional Requirements. The City Tree Official may require additional tree protection 
measures that are consistent with accepted urban forestry practices. 

21.15.130 Tree maintenance requirements. 
(1) The following maintenance requirements apply to all trees planted or preserved consistent 

with this chapter: 
(a) Responsibility for regular maintenance. The applicant, landowner, or successors in 

interest shall be responsible for the regular maintenance of required trees. Trees that 
are dead and removed shall be replaced in-kind by the property owner. 

(b) Maintenance duration. Maintenance shall be ensured in the following manner except 
as set forth in subsections (1 )(c) and (d) of this section: 
(i) All required trees shall be maintained throughout the life of the development. 
(ii) Any existing tree, tree designated for preservation, or planted tree shall be 

maintained for a period of five years following issuance of the certificate of 
occupancy or plat recording for the individual lot or development. A maintenance 



Attachment 1 

Page 9 of 11 

guarantee pursuant to Chapter 15.42 or 20.06 WMC shall be secured to ensure 
the maintenance. 

(iii) Maintenance of preserved grove. Any applicant who has a grove of trees identified 
for preservation on a site plan shall provide prior to occupancy or plat recording the 
legal instrument acceptable to the City to ensure preservation of the grove and 
associated vegetation in perpetuity. The agreement may be extinguished if the City 
Tree Official determines that preservation is no longer appropriate. 

(c) Non-native invasive and noxious plants. It is the responsibility of the property owner 
to remove non-native invasive plants and noxious plants. Removal must be 
performed in a manner that will not harm the tree or other vegetation that the City 
has required to be planted or protected. 

(e) Pesticides, herbicides, and fertilizer. The use of pesticides, herbicides, or fertilizer 
shall be by special approval of the City Tree Official only. 

(2) Planting plans and utility plans. Planting plans and utility plans shall be coordinated. In 
general, the placement of trees should be adjusted based on the tree's mature size and the 
location of utility routes both above and below ground. 

(3) Tree pruning. Topping or pruning to the extent that would constitute tree removal as defined 
in Chapter 21.06 WMC is prohibited. If a required tree smaller than six inches in diameter-at
breast-height is topped, it must be replaced pursuant to the standards in WMC 21.15.1 00. If 
a tree six inches or larger in diameter-at-breast-height is topped, the property owner may be 
subject to enforcement actions pursuant to WMC 21.15.140. Trees may be windowed or 
limbed up using best management practices. This method of tree pruning shall maintain the 
health of the tree. 

(4) Pruning Techniques. The following techniques for healthy pruning shall be used. No permit 
is required for pruning; however, all pruning should be done under the direction of a qualified 
tree professional. 

Table 21.15.120(4)- Pruning Techniques 

Healthy Pruning Techniques Improper Pruning Techniques 

Crown Cleaning- removing dead, dying, Topping -the cutting of a trunk 
diseased, crowded, weakly attached, or or main branch to the point where 
low-vigor branches, in a manner that there is no branch large enough 
should not reduce the canopy. and vigorous enough to become 

the new leader. 

Crown Thinning- selective removal of Stripping - removing the 
branches throughout the crown of the tree branches from the inner section 
to improve interior light and air. of the trunk or branch. Can cause 
Remaining branches should be well- structural imbalances and 
distributed and balanced. potential failure. 

Crown Raising- removal of the lower lm balance - removing portions 
branches of the tree to provide height of the tree and creating an 
clearance, typically 8 feet for pedestrians imbalance in the structure of the 
and 16 feet for vehicles. tree. Can cause cracking damage 

from the wind through twisting; or 
weak new growth. 

Windowing - removing several branches Excessive Pruning - removing 
symmetrically within an area of the tree's portions of the tree to a point 
crown to enhance views. where it can kill the tree. Can 

invite decay and disease. 



21.15.140 Enforcement and penalties. 

Attachment 1 

Page 10 of 11 

(1) Authority. It shall be the duty of the City Tree Official, or designee, to administer the 
provisions of this chapter. Enforcement shall be conducted in accordance with the 
administrative code enforcement procedures and special enforcement provisions related to 
tree conservation set forth below. To the extent there is a conflict between the provisions of 
this section and Chapter 1.06 WMC, this section shall control. 

(2) Voluntary compliance. Voluntary compliance is the preferred method of enforcement. The 
following remedies should only be pursued when voluntary compliance is not effective or 
when other requirements are stipulated elsewhere in the code. 

(3) Cease and Desist. The City Tree Official may issue a notice to cease and desist if the City 
Tree Official finds that a violation of this code has occurred. Continued illegal tree activity 
following issuance of a cease and desist from the City for the tree activity shall result in fines 
of $1,000 per day of continued activity. 

(4) Stop Work Order. If a violation of this chapter occurs on property where development activity 
is taking place the City Tree Official may suspend some or all of the work through issuance 
of a stop work order. The City Tree Official shall remove the stop work order when the 
Official determines that the violation has been corrected or when an agreement has been 
reached with the violator to remedy the violation. 

(5) Notification of Infraction. A Notice of Infraction may be issued pursuant to WMC 1.06.060. 
The notification shall include a statement of the restoration action required to correct the 
violation as determined by the City Tree Official. 

(6) Civil Penalty. A person who fails to comply with the requirements of this chapter or the terms 
of a permit issued hereunder, shall be subject to a civil penalty of $1,000 per tree for 
unlawful removal of trees, including removal without obtaining permits, removal prior to 
issuance of tree removal permit, or other acts violating an approved tree protection plan. 
Each unlawfully removed or damaged tree shall constitute a separate violation. 

(a) Any person who aids or abets in the violation shall be considered to have committed 
a violation for purposes of the civil penalty. 

(b) The City Tree Official may elect not to seek penalties if he or she determines that the 
circumstances do not warrant imposition of civil penalties in addition to restoration. 

(7) Tree Restoration. A restoration plan and arborist report shall be submitted that results in a 
site condition that, to the greatest extent practical, equals the site condition that would have 
existed in the absence of the violation(s). The restoration plan shall be prepared in accordance 
with WMC 21.15.070 and Include supplemental trees equal to the number of tree credits illegally 
removed. 

(a) In the event the violators cannot restore the unlawfully removed or damaged trees 
due to site conditions as determined by the City Tree Official, the violators shall 
make payment to the City tree fund. Unless otherwise determined to base the 
restoration costs on appraised value, the amount paid will be the City's unit cost for a 
restoration tree as calculated in WMC 21.15.1 00(4)(f). 

(b) Violators of this chapter or of a permit issued thereunder shall be responsible for 
restoring unlawfully damaged areas in conformance with this chapter. 

(c) In cases where the violator intentionally or knowingly violated this chapter or 
committed previous violations of this chapter, restoration costs shall be paid at the 
discretion of the City Tree Official. Restoration costs may be based on the City
appraised tree value of the subject trees in which the violation occurred, utilizing the 
industry standard trunk formula method In the current edition of "Guide for Plant 
Appraisal." If diameter of removed tree is unknown, determination of the diameter 
size shall be made by the City Tree Official by comparing size of stump and species 



Attachment 1 

Page 11 of 11 

to similar trees in similar growing conditions. The amount of costs above the 
approved restoration plan will be paid into the City tree fund. 

(8) Failure to Restore or Pay Fines. The City shall not approve any application for a subdivision, 
short subdivision, or any other development permit or approval or issue a certificate of 
occupancy for property on which a violation of this chapter has occurred until the violation is 
cured by restoration or other means accepted by the City Tree Official and by payment of any 
penalty imposed for the violation. 

21.06.xxx Hazard Tree. 
Hazard tree: A tree with a combination of structural defects and/or disease that makes it subject 
to a high probability of failure; is in the proximity to moderate-high frequency of persons or 
property; and (c) the hazard condition of the tree cannot be lessened with reasonable and 
proper arboricultural practices nor can the persons or property be removed. 

21.06.xxx Nuisance Tree. 
Nuisance tree: A tree that causes physical damage to private or public structures; has been 
damaged by past maintenance practices that cannot be corrected; is chronically diseased or 
infested; overplanted or overcrowded; part of a dense grove creating safety concerns or 
excessively obstructing sunlight. 

21.06.xxx Snag or wildlife tree. 
Snag or wildlife tree. The remaining trunk of a tree that intentionally reduced in height and 
usually stripped of its live branches. 

21.06.xxx Tree grove. 
Tree grove: a cluster or stand of at least five trees, generally lacking undergrowth. 

21.06.695 Viable tree. 
Viable tree: a significant tree that a qualified tree professional has determined to be in good 
health, not classified as a hazard or nuisance tree, and has a low risk of failure due to structural 
defects. 



fNTSNTfONALLY 

B>LANK 



Attachment 2 

Page 1 of 28 

Chapter 21.15 
DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS- TREE PROTECTION 

Sections: 
21 .15.010 Purpose and intent. 
21.15.020 Applicability. 
21.15.030 Exemptions. 
21.15.04·0- City tree fund-esta-blished.~ Alternative compjTClnce.- -
21 .15.050 Tree permits. City tree fund . 
21.15.060 Minimum tree density.Treo plans, review procedures, and tree typing . 
21.15.070 Tree removal on sites with no construction. Tree density. 
21.15.080 Tree removal for subdivisions or short subdivisionsTree protection during 

construction . 
21.15.090 Tree removal in critical areas. Installation standards for required tree 

plantings. 
21.15.100 Supplemental tree planting requirements . Tree maintenance 

21.15.110 
21.15.120 
21.15.130 
21.15.140 

requirements. 
Alternative compliance. Prohibited vegetation . 
Tree protection during construction . 
Tree maintenance. 
Enforcement and penalties. 

21.15.010 Purpose and intent. 
(1) Trees are important elements of the physical en>o'ironment. They are integral to Woodinville's 

community character and protect public health, safety, and general welfare. Protecting, 
enhancing, and maintaining healthy trees, groves of trees and vegetation are key 
community values. The City's goal is to achieve an overall tree canopy coverage of 40 
percent for the community. The many benefits of hHealthy trees and vegetation contribute to 
Woodinville's quality of life through reducing soil erosion and land instability; improving air 
qual ity, providing protection from severe weather cond itions; provid ing habitat and food 
supply for fish and wildlife ; enhancing property values and contributing to Woodinville's 
natural beauty, aesthetic character, and livability.by;-

_(a) Minimizing the adverse impacts of land disturbing activities and impervious surfaces 
such as runoff, soil erosion , land instability, sedimentation and pollution of 
waterways, thus reducing tho public and private costs for storm water 
control/treatment and utility maintenance; 

(b) Improving tho air quality by absorbing air pollutants, assimilating carbon dioxide and 
generating oxygen; 

(c) Providing cost effective protection from severe weather conditions with cooling 
effects in the summer months and insulating effects in ¥<'inter; 

(d) Providing visual relief and screening buffers; 
(e) Providing recreational benefits; 
(f) Providing habitat, cover, food supply, and corridors for a diversity of fish and vvildlife ; 

aOO 
(g) Providing economic benefit by enhancing local property values and contributing to 

the region 's natural beauty, aesthetic character, and livability of the community. 
(2) Tree removal in urban areas has resulted in the loss to the public of these benefits . The 

purpose of this chapter is to establish processes and standards to provide for the retention, 
protection, preservation, replacement, proper maintenance, and use of significant trees and 
woodlands located in the City of Woodinville . The intent of this chapter is to: 



Attachment 2 

Page 2 of 28 

(a) Maintain and enhance canopy coverage provided by native trees for their benefits; 
(b) Preserve and enhance the City of Woodinville's environmental, economic, and 

community character with mature landscapes; 
(c) Promote site planning, building, and development practices that work to avoid 

removal eF-destruction, or disturbance of native significant trees, groves of trees, and 
the understory of trees and that a'v~oid unnecessary disturbance to the City's natural 
vegetation ; 

(d) Mitigate the consequences of required tree removal in land development through on-
- - and off-site native tree replacement with thO goafsofhaffing loss andenhancing 

Woodinville's tree canopy to achieve an overall healthy tree canopy cover of 40 
percent City 'Nidecitywide over time; 

(e) Encourage tree retention efforts by allowing flexibility with respect to certain other 
development requirements; 

(f) Implement the goals and objectives of the City's Comprehensive Plan; 
(g) Implement the goals and objectives of the State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA). 

21.15.020 Applicability. 
(1) Permit r-Required . No person shall conduct tree removal , trimming , or vegetation clearing 

within the city limits except as provided in accordance to this chapter. 
(2) Removal of trees not directly or indirectly conduct any of the activities listed below before 

first obtaining a tree removal permit as provided in this chapter unless the activity is 
exempted in WMC 21.15.030 shall require a tree removal permit. Tree permits shall be 
processed as a Type I project permit pursuant to Chapters 17.07 through 17.09 WMC. 
Appeals shall be processed consistent with Chapter 17.17 WMC .. Permits shall be 
processed as described in WMC 21 .15.060(5). 

(a) Removal of any signifieant tree as defined in Chapter 21.06 WMC on any property. 
(b) Removal of nonsignificant trees, between two inches and six inches that have a 

combined diameter at breast height of 4 0 inches or the equivalent of 10 tree cred its , 
within a 12 month period. 

(2) Tree Density Compliance. Any new development or redevelopment that results in an 
addition, alteration or repair that adds square footage equal to or greater than 25 percent of 
the existing square footage, or has construction costs of an amount equal to or greater than 
25 percent of the assessed value, of the structures on site, shall fully comply with the tree 
density requirements in WMC 21 .15.070. For tree removals requiring Tree Plan IV and Tree 
Plan I Minor, the applicant/property owner shall be required to provide 50 percent greater 
tree credits than currently exist, or the minimum tree density requirement, whichever is loss, 
as described in VVMC 21.15.060(3)(a)(iii). 

21.15.030 Exemptions. 
The following activities are exempt from the provisions of this chapter: 
( 1) Emergency Tree Removal. Any tree on private, developed property that poses an imminent 

threat to life or property, due to a storm event such as a wind storm or ice storm, may be 
removed without first obtaining a permit. The party removing the tree will contact the City 
within seven days of removal to provide documentation of threat for approval of exemption. 
If the City Tree Official determines that tho emergency tree removal was not warranted, he 
or she may require that the party obtain a permit and/or require that replacement trees and 
vegetation be replanted as mitigation, in accordance with VVMC 21 .15.120(8)(b). 

(2) Utility Management. Trees may be removed by the City or utility provider in situations 
involving immediate danger to life or property, or interruption of services provided by a utility. 

(3) Commercia l ~lurseries or Tree Farms. A nursery or tree farm owner may remove trees that 
are ~grown to be sold asfor commercial Christmas or landscape trees sa les . 



Attachment 2 

Page 3 of 28 

(4) Removal of nonsignificant trees with a diameter-at-breast-height of less than two inches. 
(5) Removal of nonsignificant trees with a diameter-at-breast-height of less than six inches 

within a 12-month period, and which have up to a combined diameter-at-breast height of 40 
inches or 10 tree credits . 

(a§) Trees within the public right-of-way, and trees removed as part of a City construction 
project, shall be subject to the requirements of Chapter 2.24 WMC. 

21.1 §.040 Alternati'le somplianse. 
All activities regulated by this chapter shall be p()rto-rmed in complianoe with the applicable 
standards contained in this chapter, unless the applicant demonstrates that alternate measures 
or procedures will be superior to the provisions of this chapter in accomplishing the purpose and 
intent of this chapter as described in 'NMC 21.15 .01 0. Requests to use alternative measures 
and procedures shall be revie·Ned by the City Tree Official, ·nho may approve, approve 'Nith 
conditions, or deny the request. Examples include but are not limited to : (1) retention of 
specimen or heritage trees and groves of trees, (2) use of lovv impact development techniques, 
and/or (3) Green Building Design or Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design. The City 
Tree Official is authorized to establish administrative criteria for alternative compliance. 
Alternative compliance is intended mainly for those development applications requiring a Tree 
Plan II, pursuant to WMC 21.15.060(3) . 

21.15.040050 City tree fund established. 
(1) Fund established . A City Tree Fund is established for the collection of any funds used for the 

purpose and intent set forth by this chapter. 
(~+)Funding &.§ources. The following funding sources may be allocated to the City Tree Fund: 

payments received in lieu supplemental plantings; civil penalties collected pursuant to this 
chapter; agreed-upon restoration payments or settlements in lieu of penalties; sale of trees 
or wood from City property; donations and grants for tree purposes; sale of seed lings by the 
City; and other monies allocated by City Council. All civil penalties received under this 
chapter and all money received pursuant to WMC 21 .15.070 and 21.15.120 shall be used 
for the purposes set forth in this section. In addition , the following sources may be used for 
tho purposes set forth in this section: 

(a) Agreed upon restoration payments imposed under WMC 21 .15.120 or settlements in lieu of 
penalties; 

(b) Sale of trees or wood from City property where the proceeds from such sale have not been 
dedicated to another purpose; 

(c) Donations and grants for tree purposes; 
(d) Sale of seedlings by the City; and 
(e) Other monies allocated by the City Council. 
(~) Funding .P..Qurposes. T~;;te Cit;· sl;;iall ~:~se Ffl€lRB;' reeeive€1 J31:1FSI:I9Rt t€l tl;;iis seeti€lR f€lr tl;;te 

f€lll€lwiR~ J31:1FJ3€lS€lS . The Tree Board shall provide recommendations with each budget to the 
City Council for approval how the fund will be allocated . Prioritization shall be based on the 
Urban Forestry Plan. The City shall use money received pursuant to this section for the 
following purooses:.,. 

(a) Acquiring, maintaining, and preserving wooded areas within the City; 
(b) Planting and maintaining trees within the City; 
(c) Identification and maintenance of heritage trees; 
(d) Establishment of a holding public tree nursery; 
(e) Urban forestry education; or 
(f) Other purposes relating to trees and woodland protection and enhancement as 

determined by the City Council. 



21.15.050 Tree permits. 

Attachment 2 

Page 4 of 28 

(1) When required. Unless otherwise exempted in WMC 21.15 .030, an applicant proposing to 
remove trees shall obtain a tree removal permit. 

(2) Submittal materials. The fo llowing materials are required to obtain a tree permit. The City 
Tree Official shall have the authority to waive certain application materials if the item is not 
necessary to evaluate a specific proposal for consistency with this chapter. 

(a) Tree permit application, completed and signed by the property owner. 
(b) Site plan prepared by an engineer, surveyor, arborist, or other qualified professional , 

showing the following : 
(i) Location of al l existing and proposed structures; construction limits , 

easements, uti lity lines, and construction protection barriers consistent with 
WMC 21.16.120; 

(ii) Location of all trees above 3 inches at diameter-at-breast height (DBH) within 
50 feet of the construction limits, including size and species; 

(iii) Identification of all trees to be removed and/or relocated ; 
(iv) Existing and proposed topography at 5-foot intervals; and 
(v) Location of all critical areas and buffers. 

(c) Replanting plan, showing the following : 
(i) Location of proposed structures and retained trees; 
(ii) Location of proposed replacement trees and/or vegetation , including species, 

size , and spacing; 
(iii) Location and design of other landscape restoration measures; 
(iv) A planting schedule that indicates species, quantity, size, spacing, and tree 

density calculations for replanted trees ; and 
(v) Irrigation system, including location and specifications; 

(d) Arborist report or professional recommendation , evaluating the following: 
(i) Inventory of al l impacted trees, including size, species, dripline , and critical 

root zone. The inventory must include all trees proposed for removal and any 
trees within 30 feet of the construction limits. Written evaluation of anticipated 
impacts to tree health and viabi lity resulting from construction, including any 
impacts to critical root zones ; 

(ii) Information on compliance with coverage requirements , including a 
calculation of tree canopy or replanting schedule; 

(iii) Suggested location and species of supplemental trees , maintenance, and 
planting specifications consistent with WMC 21.15.090 ; 

(iv) Recommendations on tree protection measures consistent with WMC 
21.16.120 and correspond to the site plan in subsection (b); 

(v) Special instructions for working within the protection area, including but not 
limited to, hand-digging, tunneling, root pruning , minimizing grade changes; 

(vi) Information on any required on-site supervision during construction; 
(vii) Information on maintenance including duration, benchmarks for success, 

cost estimates, and financial guarantees/bonding ; and 
(viii) If applicable, assessment and designation of a hazard or nuisance tree . 

21.15.060 Tree plans, re• .. ie· .... prosedures, and tree typing. 
(1) Introduction. Tho City requires a tree permit in conjunction with all development permits 

resulting in site disturbance and v;ith any proposed tree removal on developed sites not 
exempted by VVMC 21 .15.030. 
In order to make better decisions about tree retention , particularly during all stages of 
development, tree removal permits will require specific information about the existing trees 
before removal is allowed . Different levels of detail correspond to the scale of tho project or 



Attachment 2 

Page 5 of 28 

activity. Specific tree plan review standards are provided in this section with the intent of 
facilitating the preservation of healthy, significant trees. 
The City's objective is to retain as many viable trees, groves of trees and the understory as 
possible on a developing site while still allowing the development proposal to move forward 
in a timely manner. This objective is intended to retain existing groves of trees in order to 
meet the City 'Nide goal of 40 percent tree canopy coverage . 

(2) Tree Plan Required . 
(a) Requirement Established . 1\n applicant for a tree removal permit must submit a tree 

planthat oomplles •nith this secUon. 1\ qualified tree professiollcil ma~equired, as 
determined by the type of tree plan described in subsection (3) of this section, to 
prepare certain components of a tree plan at the applicant's expense. If proposed 
development activities call for more than one tree plan le•1el, the tree plan level with 
the more stringent requirements shall apply; provided, that the City Tree Official may 
require a combination of tree plan components based on the nature of the proposed 
development activities. If proposed activity is not clearly identified in this chapter, the 
City Tree Official shall determine the appropriate tree plan. 

(b) Previously Approved Development. 1\ny subdivision or short subdivision that is 
subject to an approved tree plan that had approval prior to the effective date of the 
ordinance codified in this chapter shall not be subject to the tree retention and plan 
requirements in this section, except that any requested changes to the previously 
appro•;ed tree plan that results in removal of additional existing trees shall trigger the 
requirements under this chapter. The unchanged tree plan approval shall apply to 
any building or site development permits that are applied for in conformance 'Nith the 
approval of that subdivision or short subdivision. 

(3) Tree Plan and Retention Requirements. The follmving table sets forth the different tree plans 
required for development activities or removal requests requiring a tree removal permit. 
Applicants for development subject to Tree Plan II or Ill are required to attend a Technical 
Review Committee meeting prior to submittal, and are strongly encouraged to do so prior to 
any site design work, so that the applicable tree retention and replacement concepts can be 
incorporated into the design of the subject property. Each tree plan sets forth the required 
components and retention standards. The City Tree Official may 'Naive a component for a 
tree plan if he or she determines that the information is not necessary due to conditions of 
the property. For a Tree Plan IV, ·nhere a fee is required , the fee shall be paid at permit 
issuance. 

(a) Table 21 .15.060 1 Tree Plan Requirements. 
(') T f PI I ype o an R . d equ1re 

RequiFement +Fee Plan I +Fee Plan II +Fee Plan Ill +Fee Plan IV 

Type of Required for any Required for any Required for Required for tree 
project permits* for one or two permits* for three ne'"" residential remo• .. al on a 

dwelling units on or more detached subdivisions or property on •~tthich no 
individual lot. d•Nelling units; or sRGFt development aeti~otity 
For individual lots of a any use other subdivisions is proposed or in 
subdi•Jision or short than residential. and related site progress. 
subdivision with an For permits* to development 1\cti,Jity requiring a 
approved Tree Plan Ill, existing buildings peml4t Tree Plan IV includes 
the Tree Plan Ill where the cost of applications. but is not limited to: 
requirements shall be construetion requests to remove 
applied to the exceeds the healthy tree ; requests 
individual lots and no applicability to remove ha:t:ard or 

requirements of nuisance tree 



Reql;liFement +Fee PlaR I 

new Tree Plan I will be 
required. 

~- -- - - -

Majer and +roe Plan I Majer 
fHffiBr sAall be required fer 

new Ele..,•eleJ3Fflent, 
rede•v<eleJ3Fflent, er 
develeJ3Fflent in wAisA 
tAO tetal SEjUare 
feeta§e ef tAo 
J3reJ3eSOEl 
iFflJ3re\10FflORtS is Fflere 
tAan ~§ J30rsent ef tAo 
tetal SEjUare fueta§O er 
assessed ..,,alue ef tAo 
e*istin§ iFflJ3Fe¥eFflents 
en tAo subjest 
pF9f30rty. 
+roe Plan I Miner 
sAall be reEjuireEl fer all 
f3F9f3esed develeJ3Fflent 
astivities and site 
disturbanse fer 'I"AisA 
+roe Plan I Majer 
dees net apply. 

+Fee Plan II +Fee PlaR Ill 

WMG 
~~ . ~ a . Q~Q(~). tAo 
requirefflents ef 
Tree Plan I 
Miner sAall a13J3Iy. 

- ---

NfA NfA 

Attachment 2 

Page 6 of 28 

+Fee Plan IV 

reffle¥al net OXOFflJ3t 
underWMG 
~~ . ~ §.Q3Q; and tree 
reffleval in areas 
dedisated te ensure 
13retestien ef 
¥O§Otatien, sritisal 
areas and tAeir 
buffers, insludin§ 
~JGPEs . TAo 13lan 
san be develef3ed by 
tAo a13J3Iisant but Fflay 
reEjuire assistanse ef 
a E!Ualified tree 
wefessienal . 

NfA 

* +roe Plan I er II 1s reqUireEl fer any J30rffllts tAat 'NIII result 1n s1te d1sturbanse er exseeEl 
tAe seFflJ3Iianse requirefflents in VVMG ~~. ~ § . Q~Q(~) . 

n PI g . t II an eEjUireFflen S. 

+Fee Plan +Fee Plan 
Reql;liFement +Fee Plan I +Fee Plan IV u m 

(1) +reo Lesatien 0 0 . 0 0 
(Must be (Must se (If Fflore than two trees sut) 
surveyed) suPv<eyed) 



Req~irement Tree Plan I 

(~~ +ree ·Size in DBH 
Inventory • S13esies 

• General l=tealtl=t 

(3~ Site Plan 0 
-

(4~ Plantin§ Plan 0 . 

(5~ +me 0 . 
Protestion 
Measl:lres 

(€i~ +ree Density 0 
Galsl:llations 

(+~ PreseFVation -
ana Maintenanse 
.A.§FeeFflent 

(g~ Gtl=ter (~ ~ ~or +ree Plan I 
Reql:limFflents Major, assessFf!ent by a 

ql:lalifieEl tree 
J3Fofessional sl=tall be 
reql:liFeEl if any si§nifisant 
trees are in reql:lireEl 
yarEls, witl=tin ~ Q feet of 
any siEle J3FOJ3eFty line on 
tl=te Sl:lbjest J:lFOJ:leFty, OF 
witl=tin ~ G feet of tRe 
bl:liiElin§ foot13rint. 
(2~ ~oF +roe Plan I 
Minor, tl=te abo•o~e tree 
infoFFflation sl=tall be 
reql:lireEl only for trees 
J3otentially iFfiJ:lasteEl by 
J3FOJ30Se9 Ele>,teiOJ3Fflent 
astivity, ana Sl:lFVeyeEl 
tree losations sl=tall not 
be reql:l ireEl. 
(3~ ~OF lots fFOFfl a 
Sl:lbElivision or sl=toFt 
sl:lbElivision, >.e.<itl=t an 
aJ3J3FoveEl +ree Plan Ill , 
tl=te tree infoFFflation sl=tall 
be tFansfeFFeEl 01oteF ana 
tl=te aJ313Iisant Ffll:lst 
GOFfiJ:lly witl=t tl=te 
aJ313Iisable +ree Plan Ill 
Feql:liFeFflents. 

Tree Plan Tree Plan 
u m 

0 . 0 

0. 0 . 
- - --

0 . 0 . 

0 . 0 . 

0 . 0 

0 . 0 . 

- -

Attachment 2 

Page 7 of 28 

Tree Plan IV 

·Size in DBH 
• S13esies 

0 
(If FfiOFe tl=tan two trees Gl:lt~ 

0 . 

-

0 

-

( ~ ~ .A. J3FOJ3eFty o•.ao~ner Ff!ay 
FeFflove l:lf:l to t>.a.<o l=tealtl=ty 
si§nifisant trees freFfl tl=teir 
J3FOJ3eFty •.e.<itl=tin a ~ 2 FfiOntA 
J3eFioEl l:lnEler a +ree Plan IV. 
Sites witl=t e*istin§ 
EleveloJ3Fflent laF§eF tl=tan two 
asres Fflay FeFfloVe l:lf:l to two 
l=tealtl=ty trees J3eF asre witl=tin 
a ~ 2 Fflontl=t J:leFioEl. +i=tere is 
no liFflit on tl=te nl:lFflber of 
l=tazarEl trees tl=tat Fflay be 
reFfloveEl; l=to>Never, 
aElElitional nonl=tazarEl trees 
Fflay not be Gl:lt witl=tin tl=te ~ 2 
FflontA J3eFioEl if two OF FfiOFe 
l=tazarEl trees are FeFfloveEl. 
(2~ An arborist FeJ3oFt will be 
reql:lireEl, e*J:llainin§ l=tow tl=te 
tree(s~ fit tRe sriteria in tl=tis 
sestion, if mFfloval is bases 
on nl:lisanse or l=tazarEl ana 
tl=te nl:lisanse or l=tazarEl 
sonElition is not obviol:ls . A 
ql:lalifieEl tree J3Fofessional 
tl=tat J3FoviEles tl=te arborist 
FeJ:loFt for l=tazarEl or nl:lisanse 
trees sRall be seFtifieEl in tree 
risk assessFf!ent. 



Tree Plan Tree Plan 
Reqwirement Tree Plan I u m 

- - - - -

- - - -

Attachment 2 

Page 8 of 28 

Tree Plan IV 

~~) Fer nl:lisaAce er l=lai!:are 
trees iA critical areas er tl=leir 
91:lffers, tl=le (31aAtiA§ (31aA 
FAI:lSt (3r9(39Se actioA to 
FAiti§ate tl=le l=lai!:are er 
Al:lisaAce iA accerElaAce te 
staAElarEls set feFtl=l iA tl=lis 
sectieA. 

~4) +ree reFAo¥al oA 
l:lAEle•,tele(3eEl (3ro(3eFty sl=lall 
ee a(3(3r9•1eEl 9Aiy fer Aai!:are 
er Al:lisaAce trees f31:lrsl:laAt 
te tl=le criteFia iA tl=lis sectieA. 
+l=le tree reFAeval 
ex:eFA(3tiens iA WMG 
~~. ~ a . Q~Q are Aet a(3(31icaele 
te l:lASe¥elo(3eEl (3ro(3eFty. 
~a) If tl=le reFAe•v<al reEl !:lest will 
resl:llt iA a tree SeAsity 9ei91N 
tl=le reEjwireEl tree EleAsity iA 
tl=lis sectieA , tree 
ref3laceFAeAt is reEjl:lireEl as 
set feFtl=l iA tl=lis sectieA. 
~@) Fer reFAeval ef l=lai!:are er 
Al:lisaAce trees, tl=le tree 
iA¥eAtery iAforFAatieA 
reEjl:liree to ee Sl:l9FAittee 
SAall ee C9FA(31eteEl•NitAiA 
two •Neeks ef f39rFAit 
issl:laAce. AAy reEjl:lireEl 
re(31aAtiA§ sl=lall eccl:lr witl=liA 
1 ~ FA9AtAS of (3erFAit 
issl:laAce. 

~~) Locat1on of S1gn1ficant trees and the1r measured driplines and critical root zone, including those on 
abutting property whose driplines extend over subject property, shown on a map. A survey may be 
required for a Tree Plan I where an existing tree would be impacted by potential buildings . 

(2) A tree inventory prepared by a qualified tree professional must include: (a) a numbering system of 
existing significant trees (with corresponding tags on trees), (b) measured driplines, (c) size (diameter 
at breast height). (d) species and tree status (removed or retained) based on tree type criteria in this 
section for all significant trees. The inventory shall include approximate trunk location and measured 
dripline of significant trees that are on abutting property with driplinos extending over tho subject 
property line. A report from a qualified tree professional with tree risk assessment certification shall 
accompany the tree inventory, and include: (a) an indication, for each tree , of whether it is proposed to 
be retained or removed, based on health , risk of failure and suitability of species; (b) limits of 
disturbance around viable trees; (c) special instruction for work within their critical root zone; and (d) 
location and type of protection measures for these trees; (e) species ratings (zero to 100 percent) 
according to the most current published edition of the International Society of Arboriculture's "Guide for 
Plant Appraisal. " 



Attachment 2 

Page 9 of 28 

(3) A site plan using the information from the tree survey, inventory and report, sho•A'ing the : (a) 
proposed development activity; (b) location and limits of disturbance of viable trees to be retained 
according to the tree inventory and report; and (c) trees being removed for proposed development or 
trees being removed that are not viable . If a tree inventory is not required, the site plan must show the 
approximate location of significant trees, their size (diameter at breast height) and their species, along 
with the location of structures, drivev.'ays, access ways and easements. The plan shall include size 
(diameter at breast height), species, and condition of each tree. For large undeveloped sites or tree 
remo•1al within NGPEs with a Tree Plan IV, the plan must only show the surrounding trees that would 
be impacted by the tree removal. ldentLfication of trees to be removed should be indicated, including 
reasons for their removal and a description of removal techniques pursuant to this section. 

(4) For required replacement trees, a planting plan must be submitted showing location, size and species 
of the new trees in accordance to standards set forth in this section . 

(5) 1\ description and location of tree protection measures during construction for trees to be retained 
must be shown on demolition, drainage and grading plans. Protection measures must be in 
accordance 'llith WMC 21 .15.080. 

(6) Prior to permit approval, the applicant shall provide a plan showing tree density calculations pursuant 
to this section, retained trees, trees to be removed, and any required supplemental trees to meet the 
minimum density. 

(7) The applicant shall submit a preservation and maintenance agreement pursuant to VVMC 21.15.100, 
for approval prior to occupancy, recording or final inspection. 

·;;\ T~"" n,...,...,_;h o...,,.,, ;~ .... ~nntc-

Tree Plan 
Requirement Tree Plan I Tree Plan II Tree Plan IV m 
+ree Qensity +Ae minimum tree +Ae minimum tree +Re +ree Plan IV sAall 
Requirements sensity sAall af=jf=jly te sensity sAall af=jf=jly te minimum we>vtise eitAer tAe 

tAe site te +ree Plan I all +ree Plan II. tfee lesser of tAe 
Majer. Tree Plan II fer tenant density minimum tree sensity 

+ree Plan I Miner imf:lF8lJements te sRaU OF aQ f'l8FGent §Feater 
sAall f=jr81Jise eitAer existin§ l:luilsin§S af'lf'lly te tree cresit tAan 
tAe lesser of tAe wAere tAe af=jf'llisal:lility all +ree currently exists if tAe 
minimum tree requirements of \l!JMG Plan Ill. site-+s 
sensity, or aQ f=jerGent 2~ .H3.Q2Q(2~ are non88nfermin§. If tAe 
§Feater tree sresit exseeses sAall f=lFO>vtise site surrently Aas 
tAan surrently exists if eitAeF tAe lesser of tAe :2:ero sresits, a total of 
tAe site is minimum tree sensity ~ Q GFesits 8F ~ Q 
nensenformin§. If tAe OF aQ f=jeFGent §Feater cresits f=jer acre 11t«ill 
site GUrFently AaS tree sresit tAan l:le requires .* 
:2:ere cresits, a total of surrently exists if tAe 
~ Q GFesits 8F ~ Q Site is n8n88nfOFmin§. 
sresits f=leF asre will If tAe si:2:e surrently Aas 
l:le requires.* :2:ero sresits, a tetal ef 

~ Q sredits er ~ Q cresits 
f=jeF acre will l:le 
requires. * 

* F1fty pement weater tree cres1ts: +ree cres1ts currently prev1ses x ~ . a requ1res tree 
cresits. 

(4 ~ Qualifies +ree Profussional Reports. Reports preparesl:ly a qualifies tree professional sA all 
sontain tAe followin§ information, unless waives l:ly tAe Gity +reo Official. In sases VIAere tAe 
Gity +ree Official soes net a§ree witA tAe qualifies tree professional's setermination, tAe Gity 
+ree Official may seek a tAirs party review, to l:le reiml:lurses l:ly tAe af=jplicant ascersin§ to 
tAe Gity's surrent ree ssAedule. For all permits and appro>vtals requirin§ a report prepared l:ly 



Attachment 2 

Page 10 of 28 

a qualified tree professional , the costs of the services of the professional shall be paid by the 
applicant. 

(a) A complete description of each tree's health and viability. If a tree is not viable for 
retention, the reason(s) must be soundly based on health, high risk of failure due to 
structure, defects, unavoidable isolation (windfirmness), or suitability of species and 
for 'Nhich no reasonable alternative action is possible (pruning, cabling , etc.). The 
impact of necessary tree removal to remaining trees, including those in a grove or on 
adjacent properties, must also be discussed. 

(b) ThOlOcatlOrlOtllmits of disturbance around all trees potentiallY impacted-by site 
disturbances and any special instructions for work within that protection area (hand 
digging, tunneling, root pruning, maximum grade change, etc.). 

(c) For development applications, a discussion of timing and installation of tree 
protection measures that must include fencing and be in accordance with the tree 
protection standards as outlined in this section. 

(d) The suggested location and species of supplemental trees to be used when required. 
The report shall include planting and maintenance specifications pursuant to WMC 
21 .15.090 and 21 .15.100. 

(5) Tree Plan Review Procedure and Appeals. 
(a) When an applicant proposes a development activity or project that requires a Levell, 

II or Ill Tree Plan, the tree plan shall be reviewed as part of the applicable permit 
application or process. 

(b) Applicants for a Level IV Tree Plan must submit a completed permit application on a 
form provided by the City. Within 21 calendar days, the City Tree Official shall review 
the application and either approve, approve with conditions or modifications, deny 
the application, or request additional information. Any decision to deny the 
application shall be in writing along with the reasons for the denial and the appeal 
process. For Level IV Tree Plans for removal of hazard or nuisance trees, the City 
Tree Official shall review the application and either approve, approve with conditions 
or modifications, deny the application , or request additional information, •nithin five 
days of submittal. Any additional information needed for tree inventory information 
not available at permit submittal or for replanting requirements, the City Tree Official 
may add these items as conditions of approval; the additional information, inventory 
and a replanting plan shall be submitted within two 'Nooks of permit issuance, with all 
replanting occurring within 12 months of permit issuance. 

(c) \"'ith respect to Level IV Tree Plans, an applicant may appeal an adverse 
determination to the Hearing Examiner. A written notice of appeal shall be filed with 
the Development Services Department within 14 calendar days following the 
postmark date of distribution of a City Tree Official's decision. The City shall give 
notice of the hearing pursuant to Chapter 17.09 VVMC. The applicant shall have the 
burden of proving that the City Tree Official made an incorrect decision. Based on 
the Hearing Examiner's findings and conclusions, he or she may affirm, reverse or 
modify the decision being appealed. The decision of the Hearing Examiner may be 
reviewed in County Superior Court using the standards set forth in RCW 36.70C.130. 
The land use petition must be filed within 21 calendar days of the issuance of the 
final land use decision by the Hearing Examiner. 

(6) Tree Plan Review Standards. 
(a) Site Design for Development. Tree retention shall be pursuant to this chapter; 

provided, that such tree retention may use the priority trees listed below and may 
apply for alternative compliance under WMC 21.15.040. Tree plans shall comply with 
all other tree retention requirements in the Woodinville Municipal Code, including but 
not limited to those in Chapter 21 .24 WMC, Development Standards Critical Areas. 



(i) Tree Retention Standards. 

Attachment 2 

Page 11 of 28 

(A) Based on the tree plan information submitted by the applicant, the 
applicant's qualified tree professional , and the City Tree Official 's 
evaluation of the trees and proposed development on subject 
property, the City Tree Official will designate each tree as a Type 1, 2 
or 3 tree according to the criteria below. The priority shall be that Type 
1 trees are preserved as far as is practicable . 

ID\ T . '11 1c: nan 'J T, T. 

+ype ~ +ree +ype 2 +ree +ype 3 +ree 

,A, >v'iable tree that is determined to be healthy and A viable tree A tree that is either (a) not 
windfirm by a qualified tree professional, and that is to be viable, or (b) is in an area 
pro>1ided the trees can be safely retaineEl>Nhen retaineEl if where removal is 
pursuing alternatives to development standards, anEl feasible. unavoidable due to the 
meets at least one of these criteria: anticipated development 
(a) l=leritage trees; activity. 
(b) Specimen trees; 
(c) Tree gro>,,es and associates vegetation that are to 
be set aside as preserved groves pursuant to WMC 
21 .1€i.1GQ; 
(d) Wildlife habitat regulated unEler WMC 21 .24.41 Q 
through 21 .24.44Q; 
(e) Trees in geologically hai!:ardous areas as 
re§ulateEl unEler 1/lJMC 21.24 .29Q through 21 .24 .31 G; 
(f) Trees that are more than 7€i years old or have a 
diameter at l::lroast hoi§ht of at least 2Q inches; or 
(§)+roes that are a part of a §rO'•'e that e~ends into 
abuttin§ property, such as in a public park, open 
space, sensitive area buffer or otherwise preserved 
group of trees on adjacent private property. If 
si§nificant trees must be removed in these situations, 
an adequate buffer of trees may be required to be 
retained or planteEl on the ed§e of the remainin§ 
§rove to help stabilii!:e the remainin§ trees. 

(C) At the d1scret1on of the City Tree Off1c1al, Elama§ed or diseased or 
standin§ dead trees may be preserved and credited toward the tree 
preservation requirement if demonstrated that such trees will provide 
important wildlife habitat and are not classified as a hai!:ard or 
nuisance tree. l=lai!:arEl or nuisance trees may be felled to prevent 
hai!:ardous conElitions. 

(ii) Incentives and Variations to Development Standards. In order to retain trees, 
the applicant should pursue provisions in Woodinville's codes that allow 
development standards to be modified. The City Tree Official, Public \Narks 
Director, Parks and Recreation Director and Fire Marshal may review and 
recommenEl to the City Council what development standards may be modified 
to retain existing trees. 

(iii) Additional Variations . In addition to the variations described above, the City 
Tree Official is authorii!:eEl to requ ire site plan alterations to retain Type 1 
trees. Such alterations incluEle minor adjustments to the location of building 
footprints, parkin§ , driveways and access 'Nays, and/or walkways, easements 
or utilities. 



Attachment 2 

Page 12 of 28 

(b) Nuisance Tree Criteria. A qualified tree professional with tree risk assessment 
certification shall provide documentation that a nuisance tree meets the following 
criteria . The City Tree Official may ·naive the requirement for such documentation 
when he/she determines that tho criteria have clearly been met. 

(i) Tree is causing obvious, physical damage to private or public structures, 
including but not limited to: sidewalk, curb, road, driveway, parking lot, 
building foundation or roof; 

(ii) Tree has been damaged by past maintenance practices that cannot be 
corrected with proper arboriGUTturalpr:actiGOS; - - -

(iii) Tree is predisposed to fungus diseases, or chronic diseased tree, that would 
require annual spraying; 

(iv) There is overcrowding or overplanting; or 
(v) The problems associated with the tree must be such that they cannot be 

corrected by any other reasonable practice, including but not limited to the 
following: 

(A) Pruning of the crown or roots of the tree. 
(B) Small modifications to the site including but not limited to moving a 
driveway, parking lot, patio or side•.valk to alleviate the problem. 
(C) Pruning, bracing, or cabling to reconstruct a healthy cro•Nn. 

(c) Hazard Tree Criteria. l\ qualified tree professional with tree risk assessment 
certification shall provide documentation that a hazard tree meets the follo•.ving 
criteria. The City Tree Official may waive the requirement for such documentation 
when he/she determines that the criteria have clearly been met. 

(i) The tree must have a combination of structural defects and/or disease which 
makes it subject to a high probability of failure and is in proximity to 
moderate high frequency of persons or property; and 

(ii) The hazard condition of the tree cannot be lessened with reasonable and 
proper arboricultural practices nor can the persons or property be removed. 

(d) Trees in Critical ,A,reas or Critical Area Buffers. The intent of preserving vegetation in 
and near streams and wetlands and in geologically hazardous areas is to support the 
functions of healthy critical areas and their buffers and/or avoid disturbance of 
geologically hazardous areas (see Chapter 21.24 VVMC). The property owner must 
submit a Level IV Tree Plan to City Development Services Department to trim or fell 
any tree from a critical area or critical area buffer. If a tree is considered a nuisance 
or hazard in a critical area or its buffer, the priority action is to create a "snag" or 
wildlife tree ·..vith the subject tree. If creation of a snag is not feasible, then the felled 
tree shall be left in place unless the City Tree Official permits its removal in writing. 
The felling of any tree will require the replanting of an equivalent amount of tree 
credits in conformance with the tree planting requirements of WMC 21.15.070(2), 
which may be modified by the City Tree Official based on the recommendation of a 
qualified tree professional, if: (i) the lesser number of tree credits will provide equal or 
better functionality in the critical area; (ii) there is a minimum replanting of 50 percent 
of the required tree credits; (iii) a coverage analysis is submitted stating that the 
replanted trees will have equal or better coverage than the trees removed within five 
years; (iv) understory plantings are also installed; (v) a replanting site plan is 
submitted, reviewed and approved. Replanted trees shall be planted in proximity to 
where the felled tree was located. Selection of native species is required, replanting 
the same species as the removed trees is preferred, and timing of installation shall 
be approved by the City Tree Official. If more than two trees are removed, the City 
Tree Official may require an approval pursuant to Chapter 21 .24 VVMC regarding 
alteration of critical areas. 



Attachment 2 

Page 13 of 28 

(e) Trees Located in Residential Subdivisions Under Common Ownership, Excluding 
Critical /\reas or Critical /\rea Buffers. The property O'Nner must submit a Level IV 
Tree Plan to the City to fell any tree owned in common. The felling of any tree 
located in areas owned commonly shall have the option of either: (i) replanting an · 
equal number of tree credits in conformance with the tree planting requirements of 
VlJMC 21.15.070(2); or (ii) providing a tree inventory documenting that the tree credit 
density has been met. 

21.15.~060 Minimum +tree density. 
(1) Introduction. The requirement tom-eet A1Tmr11Um tree densitYapplies to nmv developments 

and major redevelopments, and nevi subdivisions and short subdivisions. If such a site falls 
below the minimum density with existing trees, supplemental planting shall be required. /\ 
tree density for existing trees to be retained is calculated to determine if new trees are 
required in order to meet the minimum density for the site. Supplemental tree location 
priority is set as well as minimum size of supplementa l trees to meet the density. 

(1) Minimum tree density requ ired. Any tree removal subject to a tree permit shall be required to 
meet minimum tree density of 60 tree credits per acre for residential zones R-1 through R-8. 
All other zones are required to meet the landscape standards pursuant to Chapter 21 .16 
WMC. 

(2) Tree Density Requirement. 
(a) Minimum Tree Density Requirement Established. Undeveloped sites and developed 

sites subject to the tree density requirements pursuant to WMC 21 .15.020 shall meet 
the required minimum tree density as follows: 

(i) Sixty tree credits per acre, except as required under subsection (2)(a)(ii) of this 
section; 

(ii) Single family residential lots less than 7,200 square feet and lots in the 
Central Business District shall meet the required minimum tree density of 30 
tree credits per acre . 

(b) For existing residential subdivisions with Native Growth Protection Easements 
(NGPEs), the tree credits within the NGPE may be counted where the homeowner's 
association or o·.vner of the NGPE has determined the number of tree credits that 
exist within the t>JGPE; the remaining tree credits required for the entire subdivision 
to meet the minimum tree density will be equally divided among the total number of 
lots. Where the tree credits in the NGPE have not been determined, the minimum 
tree density shall apply to each lot within the subdivision. 

(c) The tree density consists of existing trees pursuant to the priority established in this 
section, supplemental trees or a combination of existing and supplemental trees 
pursuant to this section. Existing trees transplanted to an area on the same site shall 
not count toward the required density unless approved by the City Tree Official 
based on transplant specifications provided by a qualified tree professional that will 
ensure a good probability for survival. 

(2) Area calculation. (d) Tree Density Calculation. For the purpose~ of calculating required 
minimum tree density, City right-of-way, and areas to be dedicated as City right-of-way, shall 
be excluded from the lot area used for calculation of tree density. Tree density calculation 
for existing individual trees is calculated by multiplying the tree credits based on the 
diameter at breast height multiplied by the species multiplier: 

(i) Diameter at breast height of the tree shall be measured in inches. The measured diameter 
at breast height shall be its size at the time of measurement, except as provided in subsection 
(2)(f) of this section. 
(ii) The tree credit value that corresponds with diameter at breast height shall be found in Table 
21 .15.070. The species multiplier is based on the size of canopy for a mature tree of that 
species, as listed in the VVoodinville Plant Species List. The multipliers shall be as follows: 



Attachment 2 

Page 14 of 28 

(/\) Tree species that have a canopy of 34 feet or less in diameter at maturity (small trees), the 
multiplier shall be 0.75; 
(B) Tree species that have a canopy of 35 feet to 4 4 feet in diameter at maturity (medium trees), 
the multiplier shall be 1.0; and 
(C) Tree species that have a canopy of 4 5 feet or greater in diameter at maturity (large trees), 
the multiplier shall be 1.2. 
(iii) Table 21.15.070 Tree Density Calculation (Diameter at Breast Height). 
(3) Tree density credit calculation. The minimum tree density cred its are calculated through a 

tree credit calculation using Table 1. The tree credit calculation is the sum of all retained 
existing trees and any supplemental tree plantings. If a site falls below the minimum tree 
density with existing trees . supplemental planting sha ll be required pursuant to WMC 
21 .15.090. The tree credit value that corresponds with diameter-at-breast-height shall be 
found in the table below: 

WMC 21.15.060(3) Table 1 -Tree Credit Calculation 

Table 21.15.070 Tree Density 
Caloulation (Diameter at Breast Height) 

Diameter at Breast Height 
(inohes)Tree Diameter Inches Total 

Credit 
Minimumf.rofffi Maximum~ 

1.0 ~3. 0 ~0. 5 

b+ ~ ~ 

~ll M 6.0 ~1.:..Q 

&:+§.J_ -1-G-:-+ 1 2 . 0 ~2 . 0 

~ ~ ~ 

~ ~ 6-W 

~ ~ ~ 

~ ~ 4 

-2&:-+ 12.1 ~24 . 0 5 

~ ~ e 
Jb1. J4.:G + 
J4.:.+24 .1 36.0 8 

J&...+ ~ ~ 

~ ~ -1-G 

4b+ 4&.-G +2 

4-&:-+36 .1 50.0 14 

W:-1- ~ +e 

M,-1. W,.G ~ 



Table 21.15.070 Tree Density 
Calculation (Diameter at Breast Height) 

Diameter at Breast Height 
(inches)Tree Diameter Inches Total 

Credit 
Minimum~ Maximum+&;. 

~ ~ 2G 

e&+ WJ) ~ 

~50.1 and above ~18 

Attachment 2 

Page 15 of 28 

(a) Tree diameter inches shall be determined in diameter-at-breast-height which is the 
diameter of the tree as measured 4.5 feet off the ground for existing trees and six 
inches off the ground for new plantings. The measured tree diameter shall be its size 
at the time of measurement. 

(b) Existing trees transplanted to an area on the same site may count toward the 
required density if approved by the City Tree Official based on transplant 
specifications provided by a qualified tree professional that wi ll ensure a good 
probability for surviva l. 

(c) Trees shall be planted in accordance with WMC 21 .15.1 00. On sites where additional 
plantings are not feasible due to spacing or other site constraints, an applicant may 
satisfy the minimum tree density requ irement through payment into the City Tree 
Fund pursuant to WMC 21 .15.1 00( 4 )(f). 

(e) Supplemental Trees Planted to Meet Minimum Density Requirement. For sites and 
aotivities requiring a minimum tree density and where the existing trees to be 
retained do not meet the minimum tree density requirement, supplemental trees shall 
be planted to aohieve the required minimum tree density. 

(i) Tree Looation. In designing a development and in meeting tho required 
minimum tree density, the trees shall be planted in the following order of 
priority: 

(A) On Site. The preferred looations for now trees are : 
1. In preserved groves, oritioal areas or their buffers. 
2. Adjaoent to storm water faoilities as approved by the Publio Works 
Direotor under Chapter 14.09 WMC. 
3. Entranoo landsoaping, traffio islands and other oommon areas in 
residential subdivisions that have enough area to support a mature 
tree of that speoies, as listed in the City of VVoodinville Plant Speoies 
bish 
4. Site perimeter. 
5. On individual residentia l building lots. 

(B) Off Site . When room is unavailable for planting the required trees on 
site, or planting on site would oreate nuisanoe or hazard trees, then 
they may be planted at another City Tree Offioial approved looation in 
the City. Tho site ohoson shall bo in the same neighborhood, as 
designated in tho Comprehensive Plan, as tho subjeot site whenever 
possible. 

(C) City Tree Fund . VVhen the City Tree Offioial determines on site and 
off site looations are unavailable, then the applioant shall pay an 
amount of money approximating the ourrent market value of the 



Attachment 2 

Page 16 of 28 

supplemental trees plus an additional 50 percent for maintenance, 
into the City tree fund. 

(D) Alternative Compliance. If alternative compliance is proposed, the 
requirements of WMC 21.15 .040 shall apply. The remaining tree 
credits required shall follow the stops outlined above in subsections 
(2)(e)(i)(A), (B), and (C) of this section . 

(ii) Minimum Size and Tree Density Value for Supplemental Trees. The tree 
density shall be based on Table 21.15.070 with the multipliers described. The 
required minimum size of the supplemental tree shall be two inch diameter at 
breast height trees for deciduous and evergreen trees. The installation and 
maintenance shall be pursuant to VVMC 21 .15.090 and 21.15.100 respectively. 

(iii) Tree Species for Supplemental Trees. The tree species chosen for 
supplemental trees shall either be trees of the same mix of species as the 
canopy that has been removed, or native species as listed in the Woodinville 
Plant Species List. Replacement trees shall be a mix of species. 

(f) Incentive for Planting a Mix of Native Species. Tho applicant has the option of 
choosing to plant a mix of native species and planting selected species to avoid 
ovorplanting . For those species identified in the V'loodinville Plant Species List with 
five year growth rates, and where a two inch diameter at breast height tree is 
planted, those trees shall be allowed to count the credit of the tree after tho fifth year 
of gro'Nth. This means that if the tree is tv;o inches at tho time of planting, but will be 
eight inches after a five year period, that tree will be eligible for the eight inch 
diameter at breast height tree credit at the time of planting. The five year grovJth 
rates may also be identified by a qualified tree professional, subject to review and 
approval by the City Tree Official. 

(i) For those applications that utilize this inoentive, and are subjeot to a Level II or 
Ill Tree Plan, the required five year maintenance period shall also include 
annual monitoring to be completed by the arborist who completed the initial 
report. Monitoring shall consist of a site visit with tho City Tree Official, 
determination of corrective actions or additional plantings necessary to meet 
the tree credits, and a report on the findings for that year. The annual 
monitoring requirements shall be completed within 30 days of the anniversary 
of the date of issuance of the certificate of occupancy, final inspection or final 
approval of a subdivision or short subdivision. 

(ii) For those applications that utilize this incentive, and are subject to a Level I or 
IV Tree Plan, the required five year maintenance period shall also include 
annual monitoring to be completed by tho applicant. Monitoring shall consist 
of a site visit with the City Tree Official, and determination of corrective 
actions or additional plantings necessary to meet the tree credits. The annual 
monitoring requirements shall be completed within 30 days of the anniversary 
of the date of issuance of the certificate of occupancy, final inspection or final 
approval. 

(g) Incentive for Preserving Existing Trees. Where a qualified tree professional has 
determined that an existing tree 'Nill be capable of long term survival, the City Tree 
Official may authorize credit against the permit fee, if the tree is retained and 
survives the five year maintenance period. 

21.15.070 Tree removal on sites with no construction. 
(1) Sites with no construction. This section shall apply only to lots located with in single-family 

residential zones (R-1 through R-8) where no exterior construction or demolition, grading , 
material storage , or other development activity is proposed, and no development permit 
application is pending or approved for the subject property. 



Attachment 2 

Page 17 of 28 

(2) Performance requirements. Tree removal on single-family residential lots not undergoing 
construction shall meet the following : 

(a) Up to two trees may be removed per year with no replacement planting, provided 
tree removal is located outside of all critical areas and its buffer, NGPA or shared 
ownership tracts. 

(b) Removal of additional trees for the purposes of tree thinning or remova l of dead, 
nuisance , hazard trees sha ll require compliance with the minimum tree density or 
replacement at a rate of three trees per each removed tree. 

21.15.080 Tree removal for subdivisions or short subdivisions. 
(1) Subdivisions and short subdivisions. This section applies to tree remova l associated with 

applications for subdivision or short subdivision . 
(2) Performance requirements . Tree removal on lots undergoing subdivision or short subdivision 

shall meet the following : 
(a) The overall site must achieve the minimum tree density pursuant to WMC 21 .15.060 . 
(b) The site sha ll retain at least 10 percent of the tree diameter inches of all existing 

hea lthy, viable significant trees with in the property boundaries prior to subdiv ision or 
construction work. 
(i) This requirement may be reduced for preservation of groves with five or more 

trees consistent with WMC 21 .15.11 0. 
(ii) In certain circumstances where tree removal results in less than 10 percent of 

tree diameter inches retained due to site conditions, infrastructure conflicts, or 
other conditions beyond the applicant's control. the City Tree Official may grant an 
exception . The applicant shall pay for the remaining tree diameter inches 
consistent with WMC 21.15.1 OO(f) in additional to any other required payment. 

(c) The applicant shall submit a preservation and maintenance agreement for trees 
located in common areas , including streets , drainage features , parks, or other jointly 
maintained spaces. The document shall be approved and recorded prior to 
occupancy, recording , or final inspection . 

(d) When forest or critical areas are preserved in a separate Native Growth Protection 
Area tract pursuant to WMC 21 .24.150 , any remaining tree credits within the NGPA 
above the required minimum tree density may be applied towards the entire 
subdivision . The remaining tree credits will be equally divided among the total 
number of lots . Where the tree credits in the NGPA have not been determined, the 
minimum tree density shall apply to each lot within the subdivision . 

(e) A final arborist report shall be submitted at the end of the project verifying the total 
trees removed, retained , and planted, prior to release of the performance bond . 

21.15.090 Tree Removal in Critical Areas 
(1) Tree removal in critical areas . Within critical areas or critical area buffers. only hazard, 

nuisance, or dead trees may be removed or trimmed . If more than two trees are removed , 
the City Tree Official may require submittal of a critical areas alteration pursuant to Chapter 
21 .24 WMC. 

(a) Tree removal proposed within a NGPA or an area under common ownership shall 
meet tree density requirements pursuant to WMC 21 .15.060. The applicant shal l 
obtain signatures from a majority of owners who hold interest in the land or if 
applicable , approval from the homeowner's association . 

(b) The priority action for a tree proposed for removal is to create a "snag" or wildlife 
tree. If creating a snag or wildlife tree is not feasible , the felled tree shall be left in 
place. 



Attachment 2 

Page 18 of 28 

(c) Supplemental trees shall be planted consistent with WMC 21 .15.060 and WMC 
21 .15.1 00 . The requirements may be modified if a qualified tree professional may 
determine to the satisfaction of the City Tree Official that equal or better habitat 
function and values can be achieved with following: 

(i) Native understory plantings are installed; 
(ii) Invasive species removal is conducted ; 
(iii) A coverage analysis is submitted stating that the replanted trees will have 

equal or better coverage than the trees removed within five years; and 
(TIT) A replanting plan is submitted. 

21.15.100 Supplemental tree planting requirements 
(1) Supplemental trees. Sites and activities requiring supplemental trees shall be planted to 

achieve the required minimum tree density. Tree density credits for supplementa l trees shall 
be ca lculated pursuant to WMC 21.15.060. 

(2) Tree species. The tree species chosen for the supplemental plantings shall either be trees of 
the same mix of species as the removed trees or mix of species listed in the Woodinville 
Plant Species List. Trees should be selected and sited to produce a hardy and drought
resistant landscape area . 

(3) Tree size and spacing . The required minimum size for any supplemental tree is a diameter
breast-height of two-inches or greater. Trees shall be spaced no closer than 15 feet on 
center. 

(4) Tree location. In designing a development and in meeting the required minimum tree 
density, the trees shall be planted in the fo llowing order of priority: 

(a) In preserved groves, critica l areas or its buffers; 
(b) Adjacent to stormwater facilities , within entrance landscaping , traffic islands, and 

other common areas in residential subdivisions that have enough area to support 
mature trees of the planted species ; 

(c) Site perimeter and/or required landscaped setbacks; 
(d) Individual building lots; 
(e) Off-site, when room is not available on-site to ensure long-term health and viability 

for the trees. Trees shall be planted at another location within the same City
designated neighborhood and as approved by the City Tree Official; and 

(f) If trees cannot be planted in accordance with (a) through (e), the applicant may satisfy 
the requirements by paying into the City Tree Fund 200 dollars per tree credit. 

(5) Installation. All required trees shall be installed according to sound horticultural practices in a 
manner designed to encourage quick establishment and healthy plant growth. 

(a) Timing . All trees shall be installed prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy 
or plat recording . The time limit for compliance may be extended to allow installation 
during the next planting season or deferred due to diseased soil or pest infestation . A 
determination shall be made at the discretion of the City Tree Official. Deferred 
installation shall be secured with a performance bond pursuant to Chapters 15.42 or 
20 .06 WMC. 

(b) Placement. All supplemental trees shall be installed in the ground and not in 
aboveground containers. 

(c) Grading . Berms shall not exceed a slope of two horizontal feet to one vertical foot 
1lJ.l 

(d) Soil specification . Soils in planting areas shall have adequate porosity to allow root 
growth and adequate drainage. Compacted soils shall be loosened to a minimum 
depth of 24 inches or to the depth of the largest plant root ball, whichever is greater. 
Imported topsoils shal l be tilled into existing soils to prevent a distinct soil interface 
from forming . 



Attachment 2 

Page 19 of 28 

(e) Fertilization . The organic content of soils in any planting area shall be as necessary 
to provide adequate nutrient and moisture-retention levels for the establishment of 
plantings . Additional fertilization shall be the minimum necessary. 

(f) Irrigation. Irrigation system shall be designed to ensure plant establ ishment. Irrigation 
shall be designed to conserve water by using best management techniques 
available , including, but not be limited to : drip irrigation; moisture sensors; automatic 
controllers; spacing designed to minimize overspray; and separate zones for different 
planting areas. 

(i) Within right-of-ways and commonareas, permanent lmgation -With an -
automatic controller shall be installed for tree plantings. Temporary irrigation, 
providing sufficient water to ensure plant survival and establishment, may be 
approved at the discretion of the City Tree Official. 

(ii) For individual residential lots, the applicant may choose permanent irrigation, 
temporary irrigation, or irrigation by hand. 

(iii) Modifications to the irrigation requirement may be approved by the City Tree 
Official for less water-intensive strategies such planting native vegetation that 
does not require supplementa l irrigation, low impact development, established 
native plant material, or where natural appearance is acceptable or desirable 
to the City. 

(g) Mulch. Required plantings shall be covered with two inches or more of organic mulch 
to minimize evaporation and runoff. Mulch shall consist of materials such as yard 
waste, sawdust, bark or wood chips, and/or organic compost. All mulches shall be 
kept at least six inches away from the trunks of shrubs and trees. 

(h) Protection. All required trees must be protected from potential damage by adjacent 
uses and development, including parking and storage areas. Protective devices such 
as bollards, wheel stops, trunk guards, and root guards, shall be required as needed 
to protect required trees . 

WMC 21.15.110 Alternative compliance 
(1) Additional density credits. The applicant may earn additional tree density credits through 

alternate measures or procedures that will be equal to or better to the provisions in this 
chapter. If the City Tree Official determines that the proposal meets the purpose and intent 
of the code through alternative compliance , the Official may modify the tree density 
requirements . 

(2) Criteria. The City Tree Official shall review each alternative compliance request based on the 
following criteria : 

(a) The alternative is designed to ensure the long-term health and maturity of the tree; 
(b) The alternative will provide increased environmental benefits including natural 

function and values beyond the standard requirements; 
(c) If applicable , the alternative will enhance or improve critical areas or NGPE areas . 
(d) The alternative will not increase soil erosion , slope instability, nor create drainage 

issues; and 
(e) The alternative provides equivalent or greater compliance with the tree code. 

(3) The following activities or strategies may qualify for alternative compliance: 
(a) Retention of specimen or heritage trees and groves of at least five trees may earn up 

to an additional 10 percent of the tree credits of the subject tree or grove. 
(b) Use of low impact development (LID) designed to the satisfaction of the City Tree 

Official and Public Works Director may earn up to one additional tree credit per 1 ,000 
square feet of designated LID area . 



Attachment 2 

Page 20 of 28 

(c) Infrastructure installation or modifications such installation of root protection barriers, 
planter strips wider than eight feet, and other similar measures to ensure long-term 
tree health may earn up to 25 percent per affected tree. 

(d) Planting 15 square feet of understory landscaping within the canopy area of each 
supplemental tree may earn up to 15 percent of the tree credits for the subject tree. 
Understory landscaping must include shrubs planted at least 24 inches on center 
and groundcovers planted 18 inches in center. 

21.15.().8.()...120 Tree protection during construction. 
(1) Tree protection measures shall be installed prior to development activity or initiating tree 

remova l on the site. Introduction. The importance of effective protection of retained trees 
and the understory of trees during construction is emphasized with specific protection 
standards in the last part of this section. These standards must be adhered to and included 
on demolition, grading and building plans as necessary. 

(2) Tree Protection during Development Activity. Prior to development activity or initiating tree 
removal on the site, vegetated areas, groves and individual trees to be preserved shall be 
protected from potentially damaging activities pursuant to the following standards. _A pre
construction meeting on-site between the City Tree Official or designee and the contractor 
shall be held to determine that these standards have been met, prior to site disturbance. 

(2) Tree protection measures shall include, but are not limited to, the following: 
(a) Protected Area. A protected area shall be established that shall bo measured to 

include the area five feet beyond the dripline of all retained trees. 
(b) Placing Materials ~Jear Trees. No person may conduct any activity 'Nithin the 

protected area of any tree designated to remain, including, but not limited to, 
operating or parking equipment, placing solvents, storing building material or soil 
deposits, or dumping oonorete '.vashout or other ohemioals. During oonstruotion, no 
person shall attach any object to any tree designated for protection. 

(B.§.) Protective Barrier. Prior to any development, land clearing, filling or any land 
alteration, the applicant shall : 

(i) Erect and maintain readily 6_ visible temporary protective fencing extending five feet 
beyond the dripline of all retained trees shall be insta lled prior to site disturbance and 
maintained until removal is authorized by the City Tree Official. along the limits of 
disturbance which completely surrounds the protected area of all retained trees or 
groups of trees and their understory. Fences shall be constructed of chain link and 
be at least four feet high, unless other type of fencing is authorized by the City Tree 
Official. 

(ii) Install highly v:{isible signs spaced no further than 4-&-£§_feet along the entirety of the 
protective tree fence. Said sign must be approved by the City Tree Official and shall 
state at a minimum "Tree Protection Area, Entrance Prohibited" and provide the City 
phone number for code enforcement to report violations. 

_(iii) Prohibit excavation or compaction of earth or other potentially damaging 
activities within the barriers; provided, that the City Tree Official may allow 
such activities approved by and under the supervision of a qualified tree 
professional retained and paid for by the applioant. 

_(iv) Maintain the protective barriers in place until the City Tree Official authorizes 
their removal, which shall not be prior to completion of major site 
development. 

(v) Ensure that any approved landscaping done in the protected area subsequent 
to the removal of the barriers shall be accomplished with light machinery or 
hand labor. 



Attachment 2 

Page 21 of 28 

(vi) In addition to the above , the City Tree Offioial may require the following as 
site oonditions require: 

(b) Construction activities. No excavation , storage, parking , construction vehicle access, 
dumping of toxic or polluted materials. or other potentia lly damaging activity is allowed 
in within the protective barrier. If construction activity within the protective barrier is 
unavoidable, the City Tree Official may allow such activities approved by and the 
fol lowing activities under the supervision of a qualified tree professional retained by 
the applicant: 

ill.JAj #-e~quipment f&-may be authorized to operate within the critical root zone, 
if no other alternative is feasib le. -ti he areas adjoining the critical root zone of 
a tree shall be covered with mulch to a depth of at least six inches, or with 
plywood, metal or similar material in order to protect roots from damage 
caused by heavy equipment. 

(i i) Utility trenches should be located outside of the critica l root zone of trees. If 
utilities must be placed within the critical root zone. a qualified tree 
professional shall review the proposal to ensure the long-term viability of the 
trees. The work shall fBj-mMinimize root damage by excavating a two-foot
deep trench, at edge of critical root zone, to cleanly sever the tree roots-ef 
trees to be retained . 

(iliG) Corrective pruning may be performed on protected trees in order to avoid 
damage from machinery or building activity. 

(Gl.Y.) Site grading within the critical root zone shall be the minimum necessary. 

_(d) Grade. 

The applicant's qualified tree professional shall establish the maximum 
amount of earthwork allowable in the critical root zone that will not imperil the 
survival of the tree. Suitabi lity of activities shall be based on construction 
techniques, erosion potential , damage to the critical root zone, stabilization 
techniques, and other similar factorsMaintenanoo of trees throughout 
oonstruotion period by watering . 

(i) The grade shall not be elevated or reduoed within the oritioal root zone of trees 
to be preserved without the City Tree Offioial's authorization based on 
reoommendations from a qualified tree professional. The City Tree Offioial 
may allo'N ooverage of up to one half of the area of the tree's oritioal root 
zone with light soils (no olay) to the minimum depth neoessary to oarry out 
grading or landsoaping plans, if it ·.viii not imperil the survival of the tree. 
/\oration devioes may be required to ensure tho tree's survival. 

(ii) If the grade adjaoent to a preserved tree is raised suoh that it oould slough or 
erode into the tree's oritioal root zone , it shall be permanently stabilized to 
prevent suffooation of the roots . 

(iii) The applioant shall not install an impervious surfaoe 'Nithin the oritioal root 
zone of any tree to be reta ined without tho authorization of the City Tree 
Offioial. /\lternatives to installing impervious surfaoe within the oritioal root 
zone , suoh as a meandered sidewalk or shifting improvements, shall be 
oonsidered prior to approval of installation of impervious surfaoe within the 
oritioal root zone . Tho City Tree Offioial may require spooifio oonstruotion 
methods and/or use of aeration devioes to ensure the tree's survival and to 
minimize the potential for root induoed damage to the impervious surfaoe. 

(iv) Utility trenohes should be looated outside of the oritioal root zone of Type 1 
trees. If utilities must be plaoed within the oritioal root zone, the applioant's 
qualified tree professional shall establish to the satisfaotion of the City Tree 



Attachment 2 

Page 22 of 28 

Official that the design will adequately support the long term viability of the 
tfee&.. 

(v_g) Exposed soils. Trees and other vegetation to be reta ined shall be protected from 
erosion and sedimentation. Clearing operations activities shall be conducted so as to 
expose the smallest practical area of soil to erosion for the least possible time. To 
control erosion, it is encouraged that shrubs, ground-cover.§... and stumps be 
maintained on the individual lots, where feasible . 

(e.Q) Directional Felling. Directional felling of trees shall be used to avoid damage to trees 
design-ated for retention . Any trees designated for preservatTOn;-per the approved 
tree plan , that are significantly damaged or destroyed during felling of trees approved 
for removal shall be replaced per WMC 21.15.G+G060ta1. 

(fg) Additional Requirements . The City Tree Official may require additional tree 
protection measures that are consistent with accepted urban forestry industry 
practices. 

21.15.090 Installation standards for required tree plantings. 
(1) All required trees shall be installed according to sound horticultural practices in a manner 

designed to encourage quick establishment and healthy plant grovlth. 1\11 required trees shall 
be installed in the ground and not in above ground containers. VVhen an applicant proposes 
to locate a subterranean structure under required trees that appears to be at grade, tho 
applicant will: (a) provide site specific documentation prepared by a qualified export to 
establish that the design will adequately support the long term viability of the required trees; 
and (b) enter into an agreement with the City, in a form acceptable to the City Attorney, 
indemnifying the City from any damage resulting from development activity on the subject 
property which is related to the physical condition of the property. The applicant shall record 
this agreement with the County Recorder's Office. 

(2) Compliance. It is the applicant's responsibility to show that the proposed tree plan complies 
with the regulations of this chapter. 

(3) Timing . All trees shall be installed prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy or plat 
recording, except that the installation of any required tree may be deferred during the 
summer months to the next planting season, but never for more than six months. Deferred 
installation shall be secured with a performance security pursuant to Chapter 15.42 or 20.06 
WMC prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy or plqt recording . 

(4) Grading. Berms shall not exceed a slope of two horizontal feet to one vertical foot (2: 1 ). 
(5) Soil Specifications. Soils in planting areas shall have adequate porosity to allow root gro'llth. 

Soils 't¥hich have been compacted to a density greater than one and three tenths grams per 
cubic centimeters shall be loosened to increase aeration to a minimum depth of 24 inches or 
to the depth of the largest plant root ball, whichever is greater. Imported topsoils shall be 
tilled into existing soils to prevent a distinct soil interface from forming. 1\fter soil preparation 
is completed, motorized vehicles shall be kept off to prevent excessive compaction and 
underground pipe damage. The organic content of soils in any planting area shall be as 
necessary to provide adequate nutrient and moisture retention levels for the establishment 
of plantings. 

(6) Tree Selection. 
(a) Tree selection shall be consistent vvith the City of VVoodinville Plant Species List or 

the Critical Area Plant List if within a critical area or buffer, which is produced by tho 
City's Development Services Department and available at City Hall. 

(b) Trees shall be selected and sited to produce a hardy and drought resistant 
landscape area. Selection shall consider soil type and depth, the amount of 
maintenance required , spacing , exposure to sun and wind , tho slope and contours of 



Attachment 2 

Page 23 of 28 

the site, and compatibility 'Nith existing native vegetation preserved on the site. 
Preservation of existing vegetation is strongly encouraged . 

(c) Prohibited Materials. Plants listed as prohibited in tho VVoodinvillo Plant Species List 
are prohibited for required tree plantings. Additionally, there are other plants that may 
not be used if identified in the Woodinville Plant Species List as potentially damaging 
to sidewalks, roads, underground utilities, drainage improvements, foundations, or 
when not provided •.vith enough grovving space. 

(d) All trees shall conform to American Association of Nurserymen (MN) grades and 
standards as published in the American Standard for Nursery Stock Manua-l. 

(e) Trees shall moot tho minimum size standards established in other sections of the 
~ 

(f) Multiple stemmed trees may be permitted as an option to single stemmed trees; 
provided, that such multiple stemmed trees are at least 10 feet in height and that 
they are appro•1ed by the City Tree Official prior to installation . 

(7) Fertilization. Fertilization of trees planted shall be by special approval of the City Tree Official 
ooty., 

(8) Irrigation. Irrigation shall be required for any tree planting completed pursuant to this section. 
The intent of this standard is to ensure that plants will survive the critical establishment 
period when they are most vulnerable due to lack of watering . All required plantings must 
provide an irrigation system, using either Option 1, 2, or 3 or a combination of those options. 
For each option irrigation shall be designed to conserve water by using the best 
management techniques available. These techniques may include, but not be limited to: drip 
irrigation to minimize evaporation loss, moisture sensors to prevent irrigation during rainy 
periods, automatic controllers to ensure proper duration of watering, sprinkler head selection 
and spacing designed to minimize overspray, and separate zones for turf and shrubs and for 
full sun exposure and shady areas to meet watering needs of different sections of the trees. 
Exceptions, as approved by the City Tree Official, to the irrigation requirement may be 
approved xeriscape (i.e., lo~tv water usage plantings) , plantings approved for low impact 
development techniques, established indigenous plant material , or whore natural 
appearance is acceptable or desirable to the City. However, those exceptions 'Nill require 
temporary irrigation (Option 2 and/or 3) until established. 

(a) Option 1. A permanent built in irrigation system with an automatic controller designed 
and certified by a licensed landscape architect as part of tho tree plan. 

(b) Option 2. An irrigation system designed and certified by a licensed landscape 
architect as part of the tree plan, which provides sufficient v;ater to ensure that the 
plants will become established. Tho system does not have to be permanent if tho 
plants chosen can survive adequately on their O'Nn, once established. 

(c) Option 3. Irrigation by hand. If the applicant chooses this option, an inspection 'Nill be 
completed by City staff one year after plat recording or certificate of occupancy to 
ensure that the trees have become established . Correcti'le actions pursuant to WMC 
21.15.100 may be required at the time of the one year inspection. 

(9) Drainage. All planted areas shall have adequate drainage, either through natural percolation 
or through an installed drainage system. A percolation rate of one half inch of water per hour 
is acceptable. 

(10) Mulch. 
(a) Required plantings shall be covered with two inches or more of organic mulch to 

minimize evaporation and runoff. Mulch shall consist of materials such as yard 
waste , sawdust, and/or manure that are fully composted. 

(b) /\11 mulches used in planter beds shall be kept at least six inches away from the 
trunks of shrubs and trees. 



Attachment 2 

Page 24 of 28 

(11) Protection. All required trees must be protected from potential damage by adjacent uses 
and development, including parking and storage areas. Protective devices such as bollards, 
wheel stops, trunk guards, root guards, otc., shall be required as needed to protect required 
tfee&.. 

21.15.400--130 Tree maintenance requirements. 
(1) The following maintenance requirements apply to all trees the City requires to be planted or 

preserved for projectsplanted or preserved consistent with this chapter subject to Tree Plan 
· Ill and Tree Plan II : · 

(a) Responsibility for regular Regular Mmaintenance. Required trees shall be considered 
as elements of the project in tho same manner as parking, building materials, 
landscaping , fences , walls, and other site details. The applicant, landowner, or 
successors in interest shall be responsible for the regular maintenance of required 
trees. Trees that EJ.i&.are dead and are-removed shall be replaced in:-kind by the 
property owner. The timing of the replacement planting shall be determined by the 
City Tree Official and a qualified tree professional. 

(b) Maintenance Durationduration . Maintenance shall be ensured in the following 
manner except as set forth in subsections (1 )(c) and (d) of this section: 
(i) All required trees shall be maintained throughout the life of the development. 
Prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy or plat recording, the proponent shall 

provide a final as built tree plan and an agreement to maintain and replace all 
trees that are required by the City. 

(ii) Any existing tree, tree designated for preservation, or planted tree shall be 
maintained for a period of five years following issuance of the certificate of 
occupancy or plat recording for the individual lot or development. A maintenance 
guarantee pursuant to Chapter 15.42 or 20.06 WMC shall be secured to ensure 
the maintenance . 

.Uill.J<;f-Maintenance of Ql2reserved gGrove. Any applicant who has a grove of trees 
identified for preservation on an approved tree plan pursuant to WMC 21.15 .060.9, 
site plan shall provide prior to occupancy or plat recording the legal instrument 
acceptable to the City to ensure preservation of the grove and associated vegetation 
in perpetuity~ , except that tlhe agreement may be extinguished if the City Tree 
Official determines that preservation is no longer appropriate. 

(ef ) Non-native Hnvasive and .o.Noxious Ql21ants. It is the responsibility of the property 
owner to remove non-native invasive plants and noxious plants from tho vicinity of 
any tree or other vegetation that tho City has required to be planted or retained . 
Removal must be performed in a manner that will not harm the tree or other 
vegetation that the City has required to be planted or protected. 

(e) Pesticides, .bMerbicides, and f-F-ertilizer. The use of pesticides, herbicides.~. or fertilizer 
shall be by special approval of the City Tree Official only. 

(2) Tree-Planting [)Plans and .!:::!Y tility Q121ans. Tree-Planting plans and utility plans shall be 
coordinated . In general, the placement of trees should be adjusted based on the tree's 
mature size and te-the location of required utility routes both above and below ground. 
Location of trees shall be based on tho plant's mature size both above and below ground. 
See tho Woodinville Plant Species List for additional standards. 

(3) Tree Q12runing. Topping or pruning to the extent that would constitute tree removal as 
defined in Chapter 21.06 WMC is not allowedprohibited . If a required tree smaller than six 
inches in diameter-at-breast-height is topped, it must be replaced pursuant to the standards 
in WMC 21.15. 1 00-+2G. If a tree six inches or larger in diameter-at-breast-height is topped, 
the property owner may be subject to enforcement actions pursuant to WMC 21 . 15 . 140~. 



Attachment 2 

Page 25 of 28 

Trees may be windowed or limbed up using best management practices. This method of 
tree pruning shall maintain the health of the tree. 

(4) Table 21 .15.100 Pruning Techniques. The following techniques for healthy pruning shall 
be used. No permit is required for pruning; however, all pruning should be done under the 
direction of a qualified tree professional. 

Table 21.15.120(4)-1-00 - Pruning Techniques 

Healthy Pruning Techniques Improper Pruning Techniques 

!crown Cleaning- removing dead, dying , Topping- the cutting of a trunk 
~iseased , crowded, weakly attached, or or main branch to the point where 
low-vigor branches, in a manner that there is no branch large enough 
!should not reduce the canopy. and vigorous enough to become 

the new leader. 

Crown Thinning - selective removal of Stripping- removing the 
branches throughout the crown of the tree branches from the inner section 
to improve interior light and air. of the trunk or branch. Can cause 
Remaining branches should be well- structural imbalances and 
distributed and balanced. potential failure. 

Crown Raising- removal of the lower Imbalance - removing portions 
branches of the tree to provide height of the tree and creating an 
clearance, typically 8 feet for pedestrians imbalance in the structure of the 
and 16 feet for vehicles. tree. Can cause cracking damage 

from the wind through twisting; or 
weak new growth. 

Windowing - removing several branches Excessive Pruning - removing 
symmetrically within an area of the tree's portions of the tree to a point 
crown to enhance views. where it can kill the tree. Can 

invite decay and disease. 

21.15.110 Prohibited ¥egetation. 
(1) Plants listed as prohibited in the Woodinville Plant Species List shall not be planted in the 
~ 

(2) The adopted King County Noxious 'Need List, as amended , is hereby adopted by reference. 
Plants on this list shall not be planted in the City. 

21.15.140-taO Enforcement and penalties. 
_(1) Intent. These enforcement and penalty provisions have several purposes. First, they are 

intended to discourage damage or removal of significant trees above and beyond what is 
permitted under this chapter. Second, these enforcement and penalty provisions are 
intended to provide complete and effective restoration of areas in 'Nhich violations of this 
chapter occur. Finally, these regulations are intended to provide a clear and efficient 
process for addressing violations of this chapter. 
The City may util ize one or more of several remedies when responding to violations of this 
chapter. In almost all cases where a violation has occurred, the City will issue a civil citation. 
If the acts that constitute a violation appear to be ongoing, tho City may also issue a notice 
of cease and desist. Failure to adhere to a notice to cease and desist 'Nil! result in imposition 
of additional civil penalties. If there is a pending development or building permit, the City 
may also issue a stop work order or 'tvithhold issuance of permit approval or a certificate of 
occupancy. Finally, additional fines may be imposed if a violator does not follow through in a 
timely manner with restoration 'Nork or other compliance issues. 



(1) Authority. It shall be the duty of the City Tree Official , or designee, to administer the 
provisions of this chapter. (2) General Requirements. 

Attachment 2 

Page 26 of 28 

fat-Enforcement shall be conducted in accordance with the administrative code enforcement 
procedures and special enforcement provisions related to tree conservation set forth below. 
To the extent there is a conflict between the provisions of this section and Chapter 1.06 
WMC, this section shall control. 

(.f.b) Voluntary compliance . Voluntary compliance is the preferred method of enforcement. The 
following remedies should only be pursued when voluntary compliance is not effective or 
when other requirements-are st ipulated elsewhere in the code. a violator is not voluntarily 
complying with the restoration requirements, 'Nhen other requirements are stipulated by the 
Code Enforcement Officer or City Tree Official, or when the violator did knowingly act in a 
manner contrary to the requirements of this code. 

(3) Authority. It shall be the duty of the City Tree Official , or designee, to administer the 
provisions of this chapter. The City Tree Official shall have authority to enforce and carry out 
the provisions of this chapter. 

(~)Cease and Desist. The City Tree Official, or designee, may issue a notice to cease and 
desist using the procedure set forth in WMC if the City Tree Official finds that a violation of 
this code has occurred. Continued illegal tree activity following issuance of a cease and 
desist from the City for the tree activity shall result in fines of $1,000 per day of continued 
activity. 

(~) Stop Work Order. If a violation of this chapter or an approved tree plan occurs on property 
on which work where development activity is taking place pursuant to a City of VIJoodinvillo 
development or building permit, the City Tree Official , or designee, may suspend some or all 
of the work as appropriate through issuance of a stop work order. The City Tree Official.,ef 
designee, shall remove the stop work order when the City Tree Official determines that the 
violation has been corrected or when the City Tree Offieial has reaehed an agreement has 
been reached with the violator regarding rectification ofto remedy the violation . ,A,ny stop 
work order issued under this section may be appealed using tho procedures set forth in 
Chapter 2.30 WMC. 

(~e) Notification of lnfractionViolation . The City's Code Enforcement Officer shall notify a person 
who violates this chapter; A Notice of Infraction may be issued pursuant to WMC 1.06.060. 
The stleR notification shall ffise include a statement of the restoration action required te--9e 
takefl..to correct the violation as determined by the City Tree Official. 

(§+) Civil Penalty. 
fat-A person who fails to comply with the requirements of this chapter or the terms of a permit 

issued hereunder, who undertakes an activity regulated by this chapter without obtaining a 
permit, or fails to comply with a cease and desist or stop work order issued under this 
chapter shall alse-be subject to a civil penalty of $1,000 per tree for unlawful removal of 
trees , including removal without obtaining permits , removal prior to issuance of tree removal 
permit, or other acts violating an approved tree protection plan. as set forth in Table 
21 .15.120. ·Each unlawfully removed or damaged tree shall constitute a separate violation. 

(9.9 ) Any person who aids or abets in the violation shall be considered to have committed 
a violation for purposes of the civil penalty. 

(.QB) The amount of the penalty shall be assessed in accordance with Table 21.15.120. 
The City Tree Official may elect not to seek penalties if he or she determines that the 
circumstances do not warrant imposition of civil penalties in addition to restoration . 

_(d) Table 21 .15.120 Penalties. 



Table 21.1§.120 Penalties 

Types ef Vielatiens 

~. ~effie>vtal ef tree(s~ af3j3FeVeEl te ee FeFfleveEl , 
el:lt f3Fier te final tree 13lan af3f3Fe¥al er issl:lanse ef 
a Gity tree reFfle¥al f3eFFflit 

2. ~eFfleval er ElaFfla§e ef tree(s~ tl:lat are er wel:liEl 
ee sl:lewn te ee retaineEl en an af3f3FeveEl tree 13lan 
er any etl:ler vielatien ef a13J3reveEl tree wetestien 

i*lfl 
~ - ~eFfleval ef tree(s~ witRel:lt af313lyin§ fer er 
oetainin§ a FeEll:lireEl Gity f3eFFflit 

(l 8 ) Tree Restoration . 

Allewable 
Fines peF 
Vielatien 

$~ ,000 f3eF 
tree 

---

$~ ,000 J3er 
tree 

$~ ,000 J3er 
tree 

Attachment 2 

Page 27 of 28 

fat Vielaters ef tl:lis sRaf3ter er ef a f3erFflit issl:leEl tl:lerel:lnEler sl:lall ee resJ3ensiele fer resterin§ 
l:lnlawfl:llly ElaFfla§eEl areas in senfermanse witR a 13lan, af3f3FeveEl ey tl:le Gity Tree Offisial , wl:lisl:l 
weviEles fer FOf3air ef any envirenmental anEl f3FOf3erty ElaFfla§e, anEl resteratien ef tl:le site; ana 
~ A restoration plan and arborist report shall be submitted that results in a site condition 
that, to the greatest extent practical , equals the site condition that would have existed in the 
absence of the violation(s). The restoration plan shall be prepared in accordance with WMC 
21 .15.070 and include supplemental trees equal to the number of tree credits illegally removed . 

(a) In the event the violators cannot restore the unlawfully removed or damaged trees 
due to site conditions as determined by the City Tree Official , the violators shall 
make payment to the City tree fund . Unless otherwise determined to base the 
restoration costs on appraised value , the amount paid will be the City's unit cost for a 
restoration tree as calculated in WMC 21.15 .1 00(4 )(f) . 

(b) Violators of this chapter or of a permit issued thereunder shall be responsible for 
restoring unlawfully damaged areas in conformance with this chapter. 

l£l_ln cases where the violator intentionally or knowingly violated this chapter or Ha6 
committed previous violations of this chapter, restoration costs shall be paid , at the 
discretion of the City Tree Official. Restoration costs , may be based on the City
appraised tree value of the subject trees in which the violation occurred, utilizing the 
industry standard trunk formula method in the current edition of "Guide for Plant 
Appraisal. " If diameter of removed tree is unknown, determination of the diameter 
size shall be made by the City Tree Official by comparing size of stump and species 
to similar trees in similar growing conditions. The amount of costs above the 
approved restoration plan will be paid into the City tree fund . 

(e~ ~estoratien Plan StanElarEls. Tl:le resteration 13lan sl:lall eo in asserElanse te tl:le 
fellewin§ stanElarEls: 

(i~ Tl:le nl:lmeer of trees reEll:lireEl te eo f3lanteEl is OEll:lal te tl:le nl:lmeer ef tree 
sreElits ef ille§ally remeveEl trees asserElin§ te Taele 2~ . ~ 5.070. 

(ii~ Tl:le miniml:lm size fer a tree 13lanteEl fer resteratien sl:lall ee as reEll:lireEl l:lnEler 
WMG 2~ .~ 5 . 070(2~. 

(iii~ In tl:le event tl:le vielaters sannet restere tl:le l:lnlawfl:llly remeveEl er Elama§eEl 
trees dl:le to sl:lrrent or fl:ltl:lre devele13ment astivity er ether site senditiens as 
EletermineEl by tl:le Gity Tree Offisial, tl:le vielaters sl:lall make 13ayment te tl:le 
Gity tree fl:lnEl . Unless etl:lervt'ise EleterFflineEl te ease tl:le resteration sests en 
aJ3J3raiseEl vall:le , tl:le ameunt paiEl •.viii eo tl:le Gity's unit sest fer a resteratien 



Attachment 2 

Page 28 of 28 

tree multiplied by the number of outstanding tree credits plus 50 percent for 
maintenance. The City's unit cost is based on the current market cost of 
purchase, installation and five year maintenance for a minimum sized tree for 
restoration. 

(iv) The restoration plan shall include a maintenance plan and an agreement or 
security to ensure survival and maintenance of restoration trees for a three 
year period unless the violation was on a site with an approved tree plan, in 
which case the maintenance period is five years. 

(g§) Failure to Restore or PayFines-. - - --- -- -- -- - ----

(a) Prohibition of Further Approvals. The City shall not approve any application for a subdivision, 
short subdivision, or any other development permit or approval or issue a certificate of 
occupancy for property on which a violation of this chapter has occurred until the violation is 
cured by restoration or other means accepted by the City Tree Official and by payment of any 
penalty imposed for the violation. 

21.06.xxx Hazard Tree. 
Hazard tree: A tree with a combination of structura l defects and/or disease that makes it subject 
to a high probability of failure ; is in the proximity to moderate-high frequency of persons or 
property; and (c) the hazard condition of the tree cannot be lessened with reasonable and 
proper arboricultural practices nor can the persons or property be removed . 

21.06.xxx Nuisance Tree. 
Nuisance tree: A tree that causes physical damage to private or public structures; has been 
damaged by past maintenance practices that cannot be corrected ; is chron ica ll y diseased or 
infested ; overplanted or overcrowded ; part of a dense grove creating safety concerns or 
excessively obstructing sunlight. 

21.06.xxx Snag or wildlife tree. 
Snag or wi ldl ife tree . The remaining trunk of a tree that intentionally reduced in height and 
usually stripped of its live branches. 

21.06.xxx Tree grove. 
Tree grove: a cluster or stand of at least five trees. generally lacking undergrowth . 

21.06.695 Viable tree. 
Viable tree : a significant tree that a qualified tree professional has determined to be in good 
health, not classified as a hazard or nuisance tree , and haswitR a low risk of fai lure due to 
structural defects .s. is relatively windfirm if isolated or remains as part of a grove , and is a 
species that is suitable for its location 



Attachment 3. Flow Chart Outlining Tree Removal Process 

Is the project exempt? WMC 21.15.030 
1) Emergency tree removal 
2) Removal of trees less than 2" 
3) Removal of nonsignificant trees, up to a 
combined diameter-at-breast-height of 40 
inches or 10 tree credits 

I 
I I 

No Yes 
No permit Submit Tree Permit 

-

Is tree removal located within a critical area? WMC 21 .15.080 

Yes 
1) Tree must be hazard, nuisance or dead. 

2)Compliance with tree density credits required 
No 

Is exterior construction, grading or other site work proposed? WMC 21 .15.060(4) 

·--~ 

I No 
Yes 1) 2 trees removed without replacement 

Must meet tree density credit 2) After 2, must replant at rate of 3:1 or meet 
tree density credit 

I 

I 

I 



)> 
C) 
m 
z 
c 
)> 
--1 m s:: 
w 



To: 

From: 

By: 

Subject: 

CITY OF WOODINVILLE, WA 

REPORT TO THE TREE BOARD 
17301 133rd Avenue NE, Woodinville, WA 98072 
WWW.CI.WOODINVILLE.WA.US 

Tree Board Date: March 25, 2015 

Dave Kuhl, Development Services Director~ 
Jenny Ngo, AICP, Senior Planner 

Landscaping requirements 

ISSUE: Shall the Tree Board review information regarding the landscaping requirements. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: To review the landscaping requirements. 

POLICY DECISION: The Tree Board provides an advisory role to the City Council on matters of 
trees and urban forestry. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
In Spring 2014, the draft tree code was brought to the Planning Commission for an initial review. 
During the meeting, several Commissioners discussed some concerns with removing non
residential properties from the tree code requirements. With the separation of single-family 
residential from non-residential uses between the tree and landscaping codes, it is critical to start 
considering the outline and language of the landscaping code. These codes should work in 
tandem to achieve a visual aesthetic that enhances the quality of life for Woodinville residents. 

The Tree Board has nearly completed a draft of the tree code, but has not yet discussed the 
landscaping code and integration into the tree code. Early drafts of a landscape code were 
created, however a comprehensive approach towards the landscape code should be considered. 

One approach is to first understand the zones within the City, including the physical characteristics 
(lot size, shape, site constraints, zoning) and the aesthetic character of the area (forested, 
agrarian, urban, etc.). The landscape code should be structured to enhance the assets of each 
zone and the community overall, yet provide enough flexibility to suit a variety of lots and uses. 
Attachment 1 identifies the different zones within the City and summarizes the physical and 
aesthetic character of the area. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
DISCUSS AND PROVIDE RECOMMENDATIONS. 

Attachment 1 : Landscaping by zone 



Zones 
Approx. 6 Located along SR- Approx. 10 Encompasse Approx. 20 Includes Located in New overlay in 
lots are 522 and Wood- properties are s retail, properties schools and northerh portion Comp Plan. 
zoned 0 Sno Road, zoned NB office, are zoned TB City Hall and aldng AMU would be 

existing uses are apartments Samm~mish River an overlay for 
primarily 

Large rlnge of lot 

the I zone 
warehouse 

Lots are .5- Lots vary greatly Lots are 0.2-1 .5 Variety of lot Lots are 0.5 Large lots- Generally large 
I 

1.5 acres in size, but acres. Lots sizes. Many to 12 acres in approx. 5 sizes. Smaller lots lots 
generally have tend to front development size. acres. located; in North 
more depth to multiple streets are split Industrial, larger 
width across lots along river 

multiple lots 
Height up to Height up to 60 Height up to 35 Height up to Height up to Height up to 45 Height ~ P to 45 
45 feet, 75% feet, 85% feet, 75% 57 feet, 85% 35 feet, 85% feet, 85% feet, 90% 
impervious impervious impervious impervious impervious impervious impervious 
surface. surface. Setbacks surface. surface. surface. surface. surfaci Setbacks 
Setbacks vary, including Setbacks are Setbacks Setbacks are generally 1 0 to 
vary from 0 buffers from Little 10 feet vary, but may maybe 20 feet, but vary. 
to 20 feet. Bear Creek. be zero feet required per Buffer from 

Tourist Sammamish River 
District 

Proposed to SR-522 to the Lots are fairly CBD has a Landscaping Consider With industrial Significant 
be removed west (noise, visual built-out in this town center is integral to variety of uses buildings and constraints with 
in Camp impacts); Little zone. focus/main aesthetics of for landscaping parking lots, stream buffers 
Plan update Bear Creek runs Landscaping street which this area. in this zone. landscaping (1 00-150 feet) , 

to the west with should provide will limit Vegetation is Landscaping should be used to potential 
large buffers ( 1 00- some visual landscaping focused more may help to soften 6uilding streams/ 
150 feet). interest to and on the sides towards an reduce or elements. wetlands on 
Consider how from Wood- and front. agrarian look. soften impacts Landsdaping is west side of SR 
landscaping can Duvall. Visibility Landscaping Consider to neighboring usuallyJiocated on 202. Treatment 
reduce or soften is important in should be views of single-family perime er. High would ideally 
impacts from road this area. appropriate valley. impervibus be a mix 
and how to tie for an urban surface (90%) in between TB 
landscaping into setting. this zone. The I and I 
required buffers. 

I 

zone covers a 
Additional uses majority of the 
may be added to wineries/breweries 
this zone as part in the dty 
of the Camp Plan I 



Attachment 1- Physical and aesthetic character by zone 

Zones •.t•••t••·~-
General Single-Family Single/Multi 

Lot 
sha e/size 

Not applicable 

Subject to Tree Code 

R·12 R-18 R·24 R·48 R-48/0 

Multi-Family I 
Varies. Lots may be split into a condominium development (small lots) to large apartment 

2-4 story buildings with 60% impervious. 
Typically garden apartments or 
townhomes with surface parking. 
Consider landscaping requirements in 
relation to potential yard space, street 
frontages, parking lots, etc. 

complexes. 1 

Multi-story (45 foot max) buildings with 70% impervious. 
Consider landscaping requirements in relation to street 
frontages, resident amenity sbaces, parking lots, and 
around buildings. Parking may be combination of 
surface and structured. I 



-~-------- ------ ------ -------- ----~-

I NTSNTIONALL y 
1SLANK 



)> 
C) 
m 
z 
c 
)> 
--1 m 
:s: 
~ 



To: 

CITY OF WOODINVILLE, WA 

REPORT TO THE TREE BOARD 
17301 133rd Avenue NE, Woodinville, WA 98072 
WWW.CI.WOODINVILLE.WA.US 

Tree Board Date: March 25, 2015 

From: Dave Kuhl, Development Services Director~ 
By: Jenny Ngo, AICP, Senior Planner 

Subject: Proposed 2015 Arbor Day Events 

ISSUE: Shall the Tree Board review proposed events for Arbor Day 2015? 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: To review and consider potential events for the annual spring 
Arbor Day/Tree-ster event. 

POLICY DECISION: The Tree Board provides an advisory role to the City Council on matters of 
trees and urban forestry. 

BACKGROUND: 
As part of participation in the Tree City USA program, the City must recognize Arbor Day. In the 
past, the City has hosted celebration events that included educational outreach and Easter egg 
hunts. During the January 28, 2015 meeting, the Tree Board proposed a date for the event, 
renaming the event, potential activities, and event promotion. 

DISCUSSION: 
Below is a summary of this year's Arbor Day Event. Staff has reached out to individual Board 
Members on these different tasks and activities. Please review the list and discuss progress on 
developing the activity, any needed support on time or funding, or questions you have on the 
assignments. 

A. Time and Date: Sunday, April 26, 2015. 1 to 4 PM 
B. Name: Woodinville Tree Games 
C. Activities: 

1. Workshop or demonstration- pruning or tree planting (Tom) 
2. Kids activities- decorate a flower pot, leaf art, collect leaves (Stephanie) 
3. Tree matching exercise (Michael) 
4. Exhibitors or food vendors (Ron/Steve) 

D. Handouts and giveaways: 
1. Seedlings (Jenny) 
2. Plant care handouts (Jenny/Agnes) 
3. Coloring books (Jenny/Agnes) 

E. Other: 
1. Banner (Agnes) 
2. Poster/advertising (Zach/Agnes) 
3. Special Event Permit (Jenny) 
4. Grant application (Jenny) 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
DISCUSS AND MAKE RECOMMENDATIONS 



--- - ~~ --~- ~~-~---~ ~--~-~-- -~--------- -

I NTSNTIONALL y 
t;LANK 


